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It’s Alright Mama (Pilot)

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

4 )
Originally aired: = Tuesday June 22, 2010
Writer: Joshua Harto, Liz W. Garcia
Director: John Fortenberry
Show Stars: Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice), Leonard Earl Howze (Reginald Green-

back), Celia Weston (Paula Ann), Sam D. Hennings (Charlie 'White-
head’ White), Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt.
JC Lightfoot), DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton)

Guest Stars: Christopher Stanley (Patrick Collins a.k.a Ray Pruitt), Dylan Kussman
(TJ Williams), Daniel Hugh Kelly (Tony Bellew), Mildred Covert (Dot-
tie Collins), Angel Campbell (Tamara Sully), Leon Lamar (Morris Tis-
dale), Darcel White Moreno (Sabine Basquie), Arthur Joseph (Abonnis
Canu), Disko Blaze (J&L Perp), Margo Swisher (Female Uniform), Yuki
Matsuzaki (Yoshi Yakamura), Cary Y. Mizobe (Asian Elvis #2), Michael
Liu (Asian Elvis #4), Vince Canlas (Asian Elvis #5), Lawrence Sykkmon
(Asian Elvis #6), Cedric Burton (Police Officer), Daniel Vincent (Man
Exiting Coffee Shop (uncredited))

Production Code: 101

Summary: Detective Hendricks investigates a case of abuse involving a legendary
D.J. that he idolized in his youth, even after his new police lieutenant
gives him a break from the case.

The scene opens with a man singing
‘Heartbreak Hotel'. That evening, at a
convenience store, a man is lying in a
pool of blood. Officer Sutton, Detective
Dwight Hendricks, and Detective Charlie
White are outside and Hendricks wants
to know what happened when Sutton got
there. Sutton retraces his steps and he
tells that he thinks that the crook went
through the window. But Hendricks be-
lieves that the crook is still inside. They
find him in a cabinet and he comes out.
When he puts his hands on his head,
his pants fall down. Hendricks visits his
mother’s home and he finds the music go-
ing, the kettle on the stove, but no mother. He sees a stranger in the backyard. He chokes him
and asks where his mother is. But she is there and is having dinner with Tony, the man Hen-
dricks was choking. Tony is a new neighbor.

Hendricks is driving down the street to the police station and it is Elvis week. Everyone is
stopping him and saying hi. Hendricks sees that the Boob lamp that they had in the station is
in the trash. There is a new Lieutenant and she is the one that threw it out. Hendricks tells
Lt. Tanya Rice, that things are different and throwing out the boob lamp is wrong because it
gives the officers a little humor. She listens and tells that there is a 10-15 that he is taking that
Hendricks tries to decline. An older lady is the 10-15 and she is not talking. Hendricks tries to
lay his charm on her and she still is not talking. Hendricks finds out that the elderly woman
is Dottie Collins. In the examination room Hendricks sees that Dottie has bruises on her back.
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Hendricks wants to get the address to where she lives. At the house, Hendricks investigates and
finds a leaky ceiling. He also finds the scene of the crime. Detective White arrives with the rest of
the crew and Lt. Rice tells that Hendricks forgot to check in and file the right reports. Hendricks
complains that she is worrying about the small things but Lt. Rice says that she is in charge.
Hendricks organizes a team to go around the neighborhood to get information to what happened.
They stop at a blind man’s house and he tells that it might have been that nurse that was hired
to take care of Dottie. He says that she had a strong accent that turns out to be a Haitian accent
after back and forth of White and Sutton trying to guess the accent.

White and Hendricks go to a bar where Canoe, the head of the Haitians in Memphis, is playing
pool. Hendricks shows the picture of the girl they are trying to find. Here name is Sebine and
Canoe doesn’t know where she lives, but she knows where she 'shops’. On stakeout, White and
Hendricks wait for their suspect to show up at her store which means the drug dealer. She is a
junkie and as White and Hendricks approach, she runs. They run after her by as she runs into
the street, she is hit by a car. Hendricks runs up and the girl says that she tried to help Dottie
Collins but 'he’ is going to kill the old lady. Hendricks takes Dottie to a safer place to stay at
and tells her that she made him who he is today. He tells that his father was Memphis P.D. but
was killed when Hendricks was a child. He goes back to her house and there is someone at the
door. It is Lt. Rice. She wants to know where Dotty is. He tells that she was taken to his mother’s
house and that there is a male suspect on the loose. She tells that he needs to take the weekend
and rejuvenate. She brings up Hendricks’s divorce and tells that she knows it is hard. Hendricks
is upset that she would bring that up.

Despite Rice’s words, Hendricks is trying to find Dottie’s abuser. He finds Sebine’s boyfriend
T.J. Williams in a Rehab center and he says that he has not abused any old ladies. He calls
White and tells that he wants a background check on T.J. Williams and White tells that Dottie’s
son just came in. White, Hendricks, and Pat Collins meet in a bar and Hendricks wants to send
a message to Pat on the point that he left his mother in the care of a junkie. He apologizes but
Hendricks takes him to the roof and shows him the edge. He promises that he will take better
care of Dottie at home. Dottie is taken home with Pat and Mrs. Hendricks is surprised that she
got the opportunity to have Dottie Collins in her home. There is a knock on the door and it is
Tony. He gives her flowers for helping him out the other day. Hendricks is suspicious of Tony
after hearing that his mother wrote tony a check.

Hendricks is asking a little girl in a tree house what she saw and she tells that she is not
allowed to talk to strangers. Hendricks picks up one of the Barbie dolls and plays with her. He
asks again and she tells that she saw a bad man at Dottie’s house and it turns out to be Pat
Collins, Dottie’s son. The girl tells that he and the Sebine were kissing and Pat pushed the red
car that hit Sebine into the wooded area. Hendricks finds that car. They take Pat to the interview
room and Hendricks is furious. White tries to calm the situation down and Hendricks exits. Lt.
Rice is there and tells that Hendricks can’t treat Pat like that because he has no evidence. She
tells that the red car is registered to T.J. Williams, the guy in the Rehab center. Hendricks knows
that Williams is innocent and is backed up by all the police force too. Lt. Rice takes both White
and Hendricks off the case.

But Hendricks goes back to the little girl in the tree house and is on stakeout at Dottie’s
house. After a while of waiting, Hendricks falls asleep. When he wakes up, Dottie is gone and so
is Pat. Hendricks takes this as a chance to go inside. He sees that the bucket that he put for the
leak is full and goes and investigates in the attic. He finds a freezer taped up and there is a body
inside. It is the real Pat Collins. They play an interview of the real Patrick Collins and he tells that
he used to have his mom do things to get money and the guy pretending to be Patrick Collins said
that he would take care of Dottie. His real name is Ray Pruitt. In the interview room, Hendricks
is with Ray Pruitt and tells that he is sick in the head. But Ray is not ashamed of what he did
and Hendricks is disgusted. Lt. Rice tells Hendricks to be in her office tomorrow morning. That
evening, Hendricks finds Tony picking up on a girl and tells him to stay away from his mother.
Hendricks goes and sees his mom and she doesn’t want him to come around for a few days.

The next morning, Lt. Rice is leaving a message for her daughter who she has not seen in
two months. Hendricks walks in. He starts telling her that she is right and that it is good to
have order. But Rice tells Hendricks that she was wrong and that he did a good job. As he walks
out, he invites her to a bar where in the beginning a man singing 'Heartbreak Hotel is actually
Hendricks. Lt. Rice exits her office and the boob lamp that she had accepted to allow has had a
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bra put on it. She goes to the bar that Hendricks told her about and they all listen to Hendricks
on the stage singing an Elvis classic.
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Baby, Let’s Play House

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

( \
Originally aired: = Tuesday June 29, 2010
Writer: Joshua Harto, Liz W. Garcia
Director: Kevin Dowling
Show Stars: Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice), Leonard Earl Howze (Reginald Green-

back), Celia Weston (Paula Ann), Sam D. Hennings (Charlie 'White-
head’ White), Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt.
JC Lightfoot), DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton)

Guest Stars: Juliette Lewis (Cleo), Sunny Mabrey (Alex), Daniel Hugh Kelly (Tony
Bellew), Christian Clemenson (Jim Masterson), Rhoda Griffis (Mrs.
Hatcher), Alix Angelis (Miss Southern Pearl), Jim Garrity (Mr. Hatcher),
Kelli Goss (Jess Hatcher), John Joly (Bic), Rob Boltin (Cyril Hous-
ton), Caitlin Custer (Kate Caldwell), Harold Evans (George), Miko De-
Foor (Bobby Tyme), John Calvin McCann (B-Boy 1), Brandon Hirsch
(Raleigh Flank), Jennie Stumpf (Ivy Hatcher), Joseph Rene (Marine),
Jollaine (Kitty)

Production Code: 102

Summary: After a missing truck driver’s son tells his classmates that his father
was kidnapped, Dwight and his partner set out to search for the miss-
ing man and help the son and the boys mother who may be hiding a
secret of her own. Dwights Mother continues her relationship with her
neighbor despite Dwight not trusting him. Dwight has romantic prob-
lems of his own when his ex-wife starts sending him mixed signals.

The scene opens with Charlie White talk-
ing with Dwight Hendricks are walking
and Charlie tells that he is offered a
part in a play. As Charlie is practic-
ing his Italian accent, they come up on
teenagers. They see a billboard spray
painted. Dwight stares one of the kids
down and the teen runs and jumps over
a fence. Thinking they’'ve lost him, Char-
lie is angry. But Dwight tells that the teen
will come back. Sure enough, the teen is
being chased by a dog and jumps right
into Dwight and Charlie’s hands. Charlie
laughs and messes with the kid.

The next scene shows Dwight looking
at Alex and they start klssmg The curtain rod falls down in her apartment. Dwight offers to fix
the problem but she says that it is alright. She is upset that she has to have dinner with her
mother. Alex gets out of bed and tells Dwight that she is going to fix things and that Dwight needs
to get to work. Dwight and Charlie go to a school and find that Mike and Scotty were fighting.
Mike tells that Scotty has been lying and saying that his dad is in the FBI. Scotty tells that his
dad was kidnapped by Terrorists and that Scotty heard the fight last night. He was going to get
the shotgun but he was too late.

Mrs. Hendricks visits the station and meets Lt. Rice. She compliments Mrs. Hendricks’s pants
and offer Tea upstairs. Dwight and Charlie go to Scotty’s home and the mom confirms that Scotty
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is lying about the FBI. Billy is hauling cotton and took on extra work. They return back to the
station and Lt. Rice tells Dwight that she met his mother and they have a lot in common. Tony
comes in asks Dwight about his mother. He tells that he wants to make things right and that he
messes up last time. Dwight tells that he is never going to be buds with Tony and he could do
whatever with his mother. A detective enters and tells that Billy Groves never checked into work
and that he left his truck in repair.

At the repair, they talk with the owner and he tells that Billy was there, dropped off his truck
and got a ride with someone. Dwight asks if Billy was friends with them and the man tells that
the people beat up Billy and threw him in the back of the car. Dwight and Charlie wonder why he
didn’t call the police and he tells that he never liked Billy and that he got what he deserved. Back
at the Grove’s home, Cloe is recanting her story and is now telling Dwight, Charlie, and Officer
Sutton that he came home and was arguing with me. At the mention of Scarecrow, Sutton says,
’Oh no.” He pulls Charlie and Dwight to the side and tells that Flynn is a gun runner and thinks
that Billy is running guns for people.

They visit Flynn at the gun shop and he is not talking. Dwight asks to see two guns in the
counter. He asks Flynn if he watched the 'Good the Bad the Ugly’ and starts taking apart the two
guns and mixes and matches them around. Flynn is not happy and finally tells that Billy told
him that he is going to 'greener’ pastures. Dwight tells that Billy was into selling marijuana. They
get the drug sniffing dogs at the Grove’s home and find the shed that is FULL of marijuana. They
find the body of Billy buried in a shallow grave. They sit down with Cloe again and once again
her story changed. This time Billy came in and was yelling. She says that Billy pulled a gun and
that it just went off. They get more information and find out that Troy, the older son was there
and that they were wrestling around with the gun and it went off. Troy calls and she tells him to
stay there.

They go to where Troy is and he is in an abandoned arcade. Lt. Rice is there and tells that
Troy is is there and he is armed. She volunteers to go in. With a bullet-proof vest, she goes in
unarmed. She starts talking to Troy about his father and he tells that he hates him. He tells that
the gun went off and it was an accident. They talk about how smart Cloe is for wanting to protect
Troy and Scotty and Troy puts down the gun. Lt. Rice shows that she has nerves of steal and
Dwight is impressed. However, he feels that Troy said that he got the gun from the closet and
Scotty tells that Troy has a gun underneath the mattress. There are holes in the story.

At the house of the Groves, Dwight has Cloe, Troy, and Charlie recreate the scene of what
happened. Over and over they repeat it until Troy messes up and tries to go upstairs. He tries to
cover himself and it is clear that it was no accident. They escort Troy to the patrol car. Dwight has
dinner with his mother and Tony and they talk about how happy the two couple are. Tony has a
new nickname for his mother. Paul. Dwight is unimpressed but ignores it. Meanwhile, Charlie is
acting in The Godfather Parts 1, 2, and 3 all in one night at the Community Theater. Tony and
Paul’ are hitting it off and Dwight tries to talk up his father when he worked for the MPD but it
is not phasing him. Dwight starts to play with the salt shakers and finds out that that the mom
did it.

They go back to the station and they have Cloe in the examination room. Dwight tells that
the ’burn on her cheek’ is actually from Cloe firing the gun left handed. Lt. Rice talks with Cloe
and tells that she is gambling with Troy’s life because he could be tried as an adult. She thinks
about it and still is going stick to the story that Troy killed Billy. Dwight questions Troy again
and tells that his mother is going to say that he killed Billy. He tells that prison will be good for
him. Dwight walks out and sees Scotty and says that the boy needs his mother. They let Cloe go
back to Scotty and the scene cuts to Dwight playing the guitar and singing. He gets a call from
Alex, his ex-wife, and lets the machine pick it up. She is saying that she needs to see him again.
She is having problems including burning food and smoke alarms going off. He doesn’t pick up
the phone.
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Love Her Tender

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

( N\
Originally aired: = Tuesday July 6, 2010
Writer: Josh Harto
Director: John Fortenberry
Show Stars: Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks), Sam Hennings (Charlie "White-

head’” White), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt. JC Lightfoot), Leonard Earl
Howze (Reginald Greenback), DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton), Alfre Woodard
(Lt. Tanya Rice), Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks)

Guest Stars: Christian Clemenson (Jim Masterson), Sunny Mabrey (Alex), Rhoda
Griffis (Mrs. Hatcher), Caitlin Custer (Kate Caldwell), Kelli Goss (Jess
Hatcher), Alix Angelis (Miss Southern Pearl), Benjamin C. Clement
(Lawyer), Miko DeFoor (Bobby Tyme), Russell M. Haeuser (Biker Bar
Patron), John Joly (Bic), Christine Standfill (Mrs. J.C. Lightfoot), Mindy
Caraccioli (News reporter (uncredited))

Production Code: 103

Summary: Hendricks investigates the disappearance of a teenage pageant con-
testant, and tries to help his ex-wife get on her feet with her catering
business.

The scene opens up with a man stand-
ing on the edge of building. Office Sut-
ton attempts to talk to the man. Sutton
tells that he has purchased an apartment
and they agree that Sutton is going to
buy a water feature from his store when
the incident is all over. But Seiro Hous-
ton, the man on the ledge, is distracted by
the helicopter. Sutton tries to grab Seiro
but they both fall. Luckily they fall only
a few feet but Sutton finds himself hand-
cuffed to the building. Dwight Hendricks
and Charlie White are on scene and try to
talk Serio from jumping. Asking the same
questions that Sutton asked, Sutton fills
them in. Dwight picks up that Seiro is upset of a woman. Dwight tells that Serio needs to get off
the building ledge and make up to his wife and ask her to take him back. He listens to Dwight
and is taken into custody. Charlie tells that it was impressive that Dwight could do that.

Dwight enters into the station where there is Elizabeth Hatcher in Lt. Rice’s office. Her daugh-
ter Ivy, a Miss Southern Appeal contestant, has gone missing along with her car. She is 17 years
old. Dwight and Charlie go to Elizabeth’s home and Glenn Hatcher, Elizabeth’s husband, is there.
Charlie asks what highway Ivy would have taken. The Hatchers have guests arrive and George,
the butler, is instructed to take Dwight and Charlie up to Ivy’s room. Ivy’s sister Jess enters and
shows the detectives Ivy’s diary but it is written in 'Jevilee’, a language Jess and Ivy made up.
Jess says that she could translate it. Dwight finds a love letter by J.M . Dwight has an idea who
J.M. is. Dwight and White arrive at the pageant and meet Jimmy Masterson, who is the pageant
director. Dwight thinks that he wrote the love letter to Ivy. But he tells that he has not been
involved with Ivy and that he has an alibi. Dwight smells 'Wild Turkey’ on Jimmy’s breath and
Dwight tells that she shouldn’t go anywhere.
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Dwight visits Alex and he asks, while she was Miss Southern Appeal, if Jimmy ever tried
anything with her. She tells that Jimmy was only the dorky son of the director but Dwight tells
that he was 35 years old at the time. Dwight tells Alex that she needs to start to get her catering
business up and running and to get the word out. Alex says that Dorothy Sutherland made out
with Jimmy. Dwight gets a call and it is Reginald. He tells Dwight that Jimmy’s alibi doesn’t
check out and there are some developments.

At Mud Island River Park, they find Ivy’s car. Lt. Rice tells that they car has been wiped down
but there is a thumb print in blood. Jimmy is talking with the Board of Directors and Charlie
and Dwight grab him and take him in a room. Dwight tells Charlie to hold Jimmy down as he
pulls out knife and needles. Jimmy gets scared and admits that he has a drinking problem. He
tells that he passed out on the bench and was in the Drunk Tank last night. But claims that
he doesn’t know where Ivy is. Jimmy makes the announcement to the other contestants that
Ivy Hatcher is missing. The girls start panicing and Lt. Rice gets the microphone. She tells that
they need to get their heads together. One of the contestants, Miss Southern Perl’ tells that she
took Ivy’s phone. Dwight... Kate Caldwell, 'Miss Bluff City’ and Bobby Tyme are in their dressing
room and they tell Dwight and Charlie that Charlie tells to put the dog in Bobby’s hands on
the ground. Kate tells that there was a fight the night Ivy went missing. Elizabeth tells that Ivy
wanted another car but in the morning, all was peaceful. Dwight asks Lt. Rice if Alex can cater
the precinct. Lt. Rice says that it is a good idea and looks forward to meeting Alex.

Reginald and Sutton tell their Sutton translates the message Dwight gets from Jess and tells
that Ivy has been spending time over at Bic’s Bar. Dwight and Charlie asks Bic about Ivy and
he tells that she has been ordering fries, cheeseburgers, and other junk food. They ask if anyone
ever looked at Ivy and he tells that he will ask his bouncers, the Marines. Dwight gets a call
from Reginald and he tells that there is an armed intruder at the Hatcher home. They arrive and
George tells that the intruder said to give him the paintings or Ivy is dead. They have the intruder
at bay and Dwight and Charlie aim their guns at him. He turns around and it is Jimmy, who is
claiming that it is all a misunderstanding. At the station, Lt. Rice is questioning Jimmy and he
tells that he found the note on Ivy’s stand and decided to use the money for his ’specific needs’
and tells that he had to borrow from the pageant and that he blew it all. He tells that Ivy fainted
twice at rehearsal and tells that the Hatchers are the bad guys because they have all the money.

Dwight looks at the ransom note and notices the watermark from the Country Club. The
ransom note was written on Country Club stationary. The Hatchers are brought in and deny
that they wrote the ransom note. Lightfoot enters in and he is bleeding. He tells that the wife
stabbed him but it is alright. Jess arrives and tells that she finished translating. She tells that
the Hatchers have been locking Ivy in a shed in the back. Dwight and Charlie arrive and George
shows the shed. Bic’s is a mile away and that would explain why she would go there. They exit
the bar and Dwight tells that there are no cameras in the parking lot. However, a familiar face
sparks Dwight’s attention and they bring in the gas station attendant and found that there was a
camera pointed at Bic’s parking lot. As they watch the video, they see that Kate 'Miss Bluff City’
walking in the bar after Ivy.

Officers escort Kate to the station and Charlie starts to question her. She denies that their
meeting was nothing and Charlie tells that the beauty pageant girls are all the same. Kate tells
that she is not a dumb girl and quotes Avid. But Charlie quotes Johnny Cash. Alex enters and
tells that her stock is gone. She tells that Dwight is going to start craving her tofu sandwiches
like mad. Dwight tells Kate that Ivy was pregnant and that is why she was eating all the junk
food at Bic’s Bar. Dwight asks who the father is and figures out that it is one of the marines at
the bar.

All the marines have alibis except for Raleigh, who has been missing for 2 days. They rush
to his apartment and find Raleigh in the kitchen and Ivy runs in to see what is going on. She is
unharmed. Ivy tells that Raleigh didn’t do anything. She narrates her story that Ivy and Raleigh
fell in love. After she found out that she was pregnant, Raleigh was called for a 3rd tour and they
had to do something. The ransom note was their idea. She is turning 18 at midnight and tells
that if her family finds out, then they will never let Ivy be free.

At the station, Alex tells that she found all of her sandwiches in the trash. She is angry that
Dwight put the staff up to it and to buy her food. Dwight doesn’t understand what the matter
is. Lightfoot tries to tells him that it is best to let her do her own thing and not to get involved.
Dwight snaps back and tells Lightfoot to take control and it was not right that his wife stabs
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him and he should not let it go. The Hatchers return and they want to throw Raleigh in jail. But
Dwight feels that it is not fair to send Raleigh to jail over this and tells that they should get only
probation. Lt. Rice sent an email to the District Attorney saying the same thing that Dwight says
but Dwight tells that released Ivy and Raleigh 20 minutes ago. Lt. Rice is happy with Dwight.

Dwight visits Alex again to apologize to her for trying to get her catering business up and
running. He tells that he needs to be a friend and not to try to fix things for her. He attempts to
go inside but she stops her for a second then pulls him in. At the station, Lightfoot sends his wife
to jail for stabbing him while at Alex’s place, Dwight and Alex are kissing. As always, the episode
ends with Dwight singing and playing the guitar.
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Polk Salad Annie

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

4 N\
Originally aired: = Tuesday July 13, 2010
Writer: Liz W. Garcia, Joshua Harto
Director: David Von Ancken
Show Stars: Sam Hennings (Charlie 'Whitehead’” White), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya

Rice), DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton), Leonard Earl Howze (Reginald Green-
back), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt. JC Lightfoot), Jason Lee (Dwight Hen-
dricks), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks)

Guest Stars: Sunny Mabrey (Alex), Paul Rae (Lewis 'Red’ Jones), Mike Kimmel (Brice
Cutter), Todd Voltz (Ronald Warsaw), Tommy Vita (Michael), Geraldine
Glenn (Detective (uncredited))

Production Code: 104

Summary: The attempted murder of a BBQ king brings suspicion upon someone
in his inner circle, requiring Sutton to go undercover as a ladies man
to get the true story. And Lt. Rice has to show some tough love when
her college-age son gets in trouble with the law.

The scene opens at Fat Red’s Barbeque
where Dwight, Lightfoot, Charlie, and
Greenback are enjoying Red’s famous
ribs. Red comes over and gives them a
pitcher of beer on the house. Eloise is
timid around him. Suddenly, they are in-
terrupted when a black teenager comes in
looking around suspiciously. Dwight tells
the team to take the sides just in case the
robber is armed. The kid pulls a gun and
Greenback picks him up and slams him
on the bar and arrests him. He apologizes
for the black kid’s behavior and that it
does not reflect on him as a black man
at all.

At the station, Lt. Rice tells that the barbecue is about to start and that people are going to
need to be on their best behavior. She tells Dwight to wear a tie to the festivities. At the barbecue
there is a Streakier that the police arrest immediately. They see Fat Red stumbling around and
he is bleeding from the stomach. Eloise tells that a black guy ran away and she can’t remember
the details that well. Greenback comes back and says that the thug that tried to rob Big Red was
released early and that he could have done it. Dwight and Charlie question Merit, the black teen,
and he tells that he was with his girlfriend having sex. But Dwight picks up that it is not true
and gets him to confess to being out late but he did not kill Big Red. He talks about a man in
a white uniform around the back the same time he was attempting to rob Big Red. A Mr. Bryce
Cutter, a hog cutter, is the man they want.

Dwight and Charlie return to the barbecue and meet Bryce Cutter. They ask him about the
attempted murder of Red and he tells that he has to wash up his hands. He runs. The catch
up to him and Cutter has a heart attack. In the hospital they question him further and he tells
that Red and him made up and that he ordered 20 hogs from him. Greenback calls and says
that they have the murder weapon. They go to the hospital room that Red is at and questions
about the hogs that were ordered. Red looks at Eloise and she tells that she has no idea how that
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happened. Back at the station, there is a group of children who have been arrested for different
offenses. Rodney, Lt. Rice’s son, is among the group. Lt. Rice takes him in the office and yells at
him. He tells that it is her fault that he is doing this and that she shut out her ex-husband. She
tells that Rodney needs to take responsibility for his actions and she won’t be paying his bail.

The credit card was if tracked to Ronald Warsaw and there is a history between him and Red.
Dwight tells Lt. Rice that her son can go and that boys will boys, but Lt. Rice wants him to get
the time that he did the crime for and tells Dwight to stay out of it. Dwight and Charlie meet
with Ron and he wants to talk to lawyer. Dwight calls him dumb and gets him to confess that it
was Eloise put him up to it. Dwight and Charlie visit Eloise and Dwight tells that Red dominates
over her but she keeps her cool. At the station Dwight and Charlie tell Lt. Rice that they Googled
Eloise and they found that she was with a racecar driver, Rick Lee, before he came up missing.
They feel that she killed her boyfriend and have moved to Red. The plan is to get Sutton to go
undercover to get Eloise to have him kill Red. Dwight, Charlie and Greenback are going to be
listening to the whole thing.

Sutton enters the bar and starts to make conversation with Eloise. They talk for a while and
Sutton becomes smoother and smoother. She tells that she is going to be back tomorrow and
that she would want him to be there again. The next night they are dancing and they become
closer and closer. Eloise talks about how Kraft called and that she was shot down by Red and
that they have until the end of the month to make her decision. He tells that he needs to go for it.
Eloise and Sutton kiss and Dwight thinks they lost the feed. Outside the bar, Dwight tells Sutton
to stop the kissing. Sutton tells that he can handle it. Inside he returns and tells that he could
do anything for her. She tells that she wants her brother dead. She tells that she will pay $5,000
to do it and that she wants to see the body.

Dwight and Charlie tell Red that Eloise was the one trying to kill him. They need his help. At
the RV Park, Sutton arrives and Eloise sees the body of Red. She yells at him and tells that she
was not acknowledged and says that she is somebody. Red opens his eyes and tells that they are
going to "have a talk”. Dwight and Charlie are chasing Red and Dwight tells that Sutton has to
talk Red down. Sutton tells about his brother who was better then him and that he hated him
and wished he was dead. But then his brother did die and that it was the worse thing. He tells
that it was a farm accident and that he wishes that his brother was back with them. He tells that
they are headed for a trap and that they have a chance to end it nicely. They pull over and both
are taken into custody. Sutton talks to Eloise and tells that he can make sure that she will only
go in for attempted murder and nothing else. Dwight tells that he should never get involved with
a would-be killer. He tells that he will introduce him to Ed’s barbeque ribs.

Later that evening Dwight enters Lt. Rice’s office and tells that she needs to go to him. She
tells that he needs to stop meddle. However, Dwight tells that she is the one meddling and she
snaps that Dwight is meddling in everyone’s life and she tells that he needs to get out of her
office. He takes off the tie. In the bar, Dwight sings "Polk Salad Annie” and the next morning goes
to Alex’s house. She tells that she has a lot of chores and he tells that he understands that he
needs to back up and stop meddling. He has brought a tool box to her and tells that he knows
that she can stand on her own two feet. He leaves.
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One Night of Sin

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

( N\
Originally aired: = Tuesday July 20, 2010
Writer: Joshua Harto, Liz W. Garcia
Director: Alex Zakrzewski
Show Stars: DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks), Sam

Hennings (Charlie 'Whitehead” White), Leonard Earl Howze (Reginald
Greenback), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt. JC Lightfoot), Jason Lee (Dwight
Hendricks), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice)

Guest Stars: Ernie Lively (Doc Boswell), Giovanni Ribisi (Gene Templar), Jackie
Tohn (Delilah Boswell), Jd Evermore (Leonard), Sherri Saum (Melinda
Conner), Donna DuPlantier (Gloria the M.E.), Randy Austin (Benny),
Tina Parker (Sadie Boswell), Tracy Miller (Frank Dixon)

Production Code: 105

Sumimary: The lead singer and mother of a singing country western family dies
suddenly only to be followed by the group’s manager. But while the
manager’s death appears to be a suicide, Dwight begins to suspect
foul play when bitter fights between the family members come to light
and a disturbed fanatic begins to display even stranger behavior than
normal.

It is the night of Darlene 'Ma’ Boswell
Memorial and it is open to the public.
Dwight is with his mother at the memo-
rial and she is excited to be there. Doc,
Darlene’s husband and two daughters
Sadie and Delilah are there and man-
ager Frank Dixon is introduced. Frank is
emotional and they leave the stage. Af-
ter the memorial, reporter Melinda Con-
ner wants to interview Dwight of as one
of the fans for her documentary on the
Boswell Family. Dwight tells that he is
not good on camera but does it anyways.
Doc, Sadie and Delilah join in the inter-
view too as another fan named Gene Tem-
plar. Dwight sees a patrol car pull up to the memorial. He gets a call on his phone. Frank Dixon
has been found dead.

In the back of the venue, they find Frank’s body and Charlie tells that he must have jumped
from the balcony and that he was grief stricken. Lt. Rice tells that Frank had a beer bottle in his
hand when he jumped. But Dwight tells that Frank didn’t drink. Charlie speaks to Benny the
security guard and tells that he is going to have to get the list of the VIP members. Benny tries
to refuse but Charlie tells that he will get the list now. Dwight and Charlie enter with the Boswell
family and Sadie is with her husband Leonard and Doc Boswell tells that he saw Frank during
his post gig 'ritual’. Sadie is torn up about the news and Delilah enters. She is drunk and Sadie
tells that Frank is dead. She gets into Sadie’s face and Leonard tries to calm down the situation
but Delilah yells at him. She leaves and Doc says that his mandolin is missing.

Back with the body of Frank, Dwight tells that Frank has not touched alcohol for 30 years
and that the scratches on his face are from the Mandolin. It is no longer a suicide, it is a murder.
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At the station Dwight talks to Lt. Rice and tells that they have a list of people in the VIP room
and that all of them have alibis. He tells that Delilah’s alibi is not concrete but tells that her
feelings at the news that Frank was dead were genuine. Rice tells Dwight not to think that the
famous are without killing motives. Charlie is talking about his escapades with other women and
Lt. Rice tells that his personal antidotes are distracting and not to say them. Dwight tells that he
is going to meet with the reporter and Charlie tells that he has a 'thing’ to do. Dwight meets with
Melinda and she agrees to show the VIP footage of Dwight agrees to let her shoot him on film for
her documentary in Memphis music. He agrees.

As they watch, they see Benny get distracted by a blonde bombshell. A mystery man shows
up on the film but they don’t know who he is. Later, Charlie and Dwight meet with Benny the
security guard and he is confessing that he has been cheating on his wife and Charlie shows the
picture of the mystery man and Benny says that he is Gene Templar, a Boswell fan who runs the
Boswell website, and that he snuck in when Benny was getting lucky with the blonde bombshell.

Greenback gets the info on Gene and tells that he is a schizophrenic and that he has re-
straining orders on him from famous country singers. Dwight and Charlie walk into Gene’s place
and there is a memorabilia of the Boswell Family on his wall. Dwight finds Doc’s mandolin in his
place. They hear a sound and find Gene trying to kill himself. They tell that he killed Frank Dixon
but he tells that he didn’t do it. He tells that he went back to the VIP and took the mandolin. He
tells that he was with other members of the fan club and Charlie calls him a crazy lunatic. He
tells that there are a lot of people who could have killed Frank and he tells that his website is
going to be the main website for the Boswells.

Greenback tells that Gene’s alibi checks out and Dwight tells that Gene’s hunches were right
and that an allowance that was paid to Doc stopped two days before Frank’s death. Dwight
meets up with Delilah at a bar and she tells that she left and walked home the night Frank was
murdered. She tells that Frank and Doc never got along and tells that Frank wanted Doc to stop
touring with them and that Frank was a better father to Delilah then Doc was. Dwight meets with
Doc and he is cocky of his talent. Dwight tells that he was kept on allowance because he wasn’t
making nice with the fans. Doc tells that the money was so that Doc will stay married to Darlene.
Dwight calls Charlie and tells that he has Doc in the interview room. Dwight meets Leonard in
the hall and he tells that Gene is a nutcase and not to trust him. Dwight wants to know where
Charlie is and asks Lt. Rice and she tells that she is looking in on a matter. An informant tells
that Charlie had an affair with a woman. She tells that she will let Dwight know her decision
about Charlie’s affair.

Greenback tells that Delilah’s prints were on the mandolin and Dwight tells that her alibi is
not concrete. Dwight meets Charlie and tells the news and then talks about his accused affairs
and Charlie tells that he would never do that to Anne Marie. Charlie tells that he is putting on an
act and that he has been telling stories. Dwight tells that he needs to go in and Talk to Lt. Rice
and tell her that it is all an act and that he won’t do it anymore. He tells Charlie that he is not
as good as a detective with out Charlie there. Charlie tells that Delilah is a time bomb ready to
go off. Later, Dwight meets with Melinda and Melinda tells that Dwight is on ’the list’ of eligible
bachelors. Dwight tells that he has a theory. He feels that Delilah and Frank were father and
daughter. Melinda tells that she ran a paternity test and that Doc found out what they were and
the allowance was hush money. Melinda tells that Delilah is hurting for sure.

Dwight meets with Gene again and he gives Dwight a picture of Frank and Delilah kissing.
Dwight has his motive. In the interviewing room, Dwight tells that he knows that Frank was her
father. She tells that she kissed Frank and he ran out. At the memorial, Delilah tried to kiss
Frank and he told her that he was her father. She grabbed the mandolin and hit him with it. But
he was alive when she left the room. She tells that Sadie was having a panic attack and Leonard
was not with Sadie because of her panic attack. Charlie comes in and gives Lt. Rice tomatoes.
He tells that he needs to explain his situation and she tells that she is not looking in the matter
and tells him to get back to work. Charlie and Dwight tell Gene that Leonard is paying Gene off
by offering the website to him so that he won'’t talk. They tell Gene that they are going to wire
him during his talk with Leonard.

Gene meets with Leonard and tells that the detectives want help and he doesn’t want to lie.
Gene tells that he wants to go on tour with them in exchange of his silence. Leonard laughs and
tells that no one is going to believe him. Gene laughs and Leonard points a gun at him and tells
that he will kill him. Dwight and Charlie enter with the rest of the team and stop Leonard from
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killing him. Dwight performs with Delilah Boswell on stage and they sing together.
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Run On

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

( )
Originally aired: = Tuesday July 27, 2010
Writer: Sean Whitesell
Director: Randy Zisk
Show Stars: Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Sam Hennings (Charlie 'Whitehead’

White), DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice),
Abraham Benrubi (Sgt. JC Lightfoot), Leonard Earl Howze (Reginald
Greenback), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks)

Guest Stars: Beau Brasso (Officer meyers), Brent Henry (Phil Jorgensen), Nicki Six-
teen (Street Hustler (uncredited)), Erik King (Wendell "Honey-boy” Tay-
lor), Karl Makinen (Jerry "Bug” Bugner), Samuel Ball (Randi Perkins)

Production Code: 106

Summary: After very popular local boxer is beaten up, suspicion falls on several
people who stood to lose a lot from his impending retirement. Sutton
goes on a quest to correct a missed opportunity from his past.

The scene opens with a drunken Sut-
ton singing to the jukebox. He gets the
whole bar into singing and dance. Sut-
ton punches Greenback in the stomach.
Greenback gets serious and Sutton tells
that Greenback is not a wimp. Sutton
tells Greenback that he can hit him in the
face and Greenback says for Sutton to hit
him first. Sutton punches Greenback in
the face and pushes him into the bar. A
guy pushes Sutton and Greenback sticks
up for Sutton and pushes the other guy.
Dwight and Charlie get into the brawl and
they beat up the drunken man and his
friends then go back to singing. Later a
drunken Sutton asks what life is all about and asks what bar is next and Greenback takes
Sutton home.

Dwight and Charlie drive around the area and a car pulls up to a gas station behind them as
they drive away. A guy gets out and tells that his life is about to change. Another car pulls up
and has a pipe. The man fights with the other and there is a gunshot. Dwight and Charlie arrive
on scene and Sutton tells that Wendell 'Honey-boy’ Taylor, the boxer, is the victim and was shot.
But Sutton hears that he will live through it. His wallet was gone and that was it. Sutton tells
that he rounded up thugs, a homeless man, and a prostitute and tells them to put them in the
hot box. But Charlie tells Sutton to take their statements and let them go. Inside the gas station,
Dwight talks to the attendant, Phil, and Dwight tells that Phil would have had a good view. Phil
tells that he was making coffee when he heard the gunshot. He offers to give the surveillance
tapes to them. Dwight asks

Dwight and Charlie visit Wendell in the hospital and his girlfriend, Billi, says that she was
talking to him before he was in the fight. He is in a coma and Billi tells that he is going to be
the best dad. She tells that she is three months along. Dwight tells Lt. Rice about the history of
Wendell's career in boxing and that the tech guys are trying to clean up the surveillance video. He
mentions that Wendell’s boxing manager, Ron Funk, stands to loose the most and has a record.
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Dwight and Charlie visit and tells that Jerry 'Bug’ Budner, Wendell's sparring partner doesn’t
like him and tells that he was making trouble. He tells that he brought a gun to a boxing club
for Wendell. Before leaving Dwight sees a picture on Funks wall of a tattoo rose.

The two detectives visit with Jerry and he runs. They catch up to him and he gets trapped.
Charlie tells that he will shoot Jerry if he doesn’t get on the ground. He tells that they either fight
him or shoot him. Dwight tells that he will fight him. Dwight starts to name old class boxers and
howls at him. Jerry thinks Dwight is crazy and tells that he won't fight him. Charlie asks why
he brought a gun to kill Wendell to the boxing club. He tells that he brought that for Ron Funk
because he told him to throw a fight. He tells that they really need to be looking at Funk because
he had a fight a while ago and there is still tension. Dwight tells that Funk goes to church and
so does Wendell.

They go to the church and find out that Funk is a ’generous’ donator to the church. The priest
tells that Funk had an affair with Wendell’s girlfriend 8 months ago and that Wendell made up
with his girlfriend but there was a 'trying period’ for Wendell and Funk. Back at the station a
person who had his wallet stolen needs to see someone to speed up. Sutton spots that the man
has a pair of shoes that he has and the man tells that he is getting ready to go to his 10 year High
School reunion and Sutton shows that he got his invitation to his 10 year. Sutton tells that he is
going to ‘throw his weight around’ and see if he can’t help out the stranger sooner. Meanwhile,
Dwight and Charlie are at the hospital and say that Wendell has a lot of friends. Dwight asks if
any boxing people came back and Billi tells that Funk was there and leans over and shows a rose
tattoo on her stomach. She tells that she was young and stupid and tells that Funk and Wendell
needed to work with each other to better them both and tells that Funk forgave and forgot. But
Dwight tells Charlie as they leave that the picture of Billi’s tattoo on Funk’s wall is a clear sign
that Funk has not forgotten.

Back at the station, Sutton asks if the stranger was helped yet and the officer tells that he is
next. Sutton tells that his new friend is up but he won’t wake up. He is dead. Charlie gets a call
from Greenback and tells that Funk went A-Wall. Back at the police station, the coroner tells that
if she had to guess, it was because of an aneurism. Sutton tells that he will track down where he
bought the shoes and follow the leads. Lt. Rice appreciates the initiative and Sutton tells that he
feels that it reminded him of himself and now the stranger is dead. Greenback tells Charlie that
he got a description from the video. It is a ‘98 Red Camry. Randi Perkins is the owner of the car
and he was just released from County.

They visit Randi and he tells that he wasn’t anywhere near a gas station and tells them to
verify it with his grandma. Dwight is in the car and he is still thinking to where Funk had ’gone
eating’ too like his neighbors said. Charlie and Dwight say 'bull’s balls’ at the same time and visit
Jerry again and ask where Bull's Balls is. He tells that it is in Houston and that he liked other
things too like Eels too. Dwight sees a picture of Funk and Wendell at the press conference.
Jerry tells that someone was in the crowd that killed Wendell's buzz and brought him down.
Meanwhile, Sutton is trying to find the guy on Classmates.com and Sutton tells Greenback that
something ’spiritual’ happened to him. The stranger is named Steve and he talked with his sister
and she told that Steve was going to find a sweetheart that he wanted to do but could never do.
Sutton feels that he needs to face his own fears and go after the girl that got away.

Dwight and Charlie talk with Lt. Rice and tell her that Wendell was spooked by someone at
the press conference and that he withdrew $10,000 from his account and the next day Funk
paid off a bookie with the $10,000. They find out where Funk is hiding and they go to get him.
They find Funk eating with a bunch of rich people and tell that if Funk cooperates, then they will
give him a nice jail cell and not allow his bookies to break his legs. Funk tells that the guy that
spooked Wendell was not his and that it was a white guy. Dwight tells that if Funk gives a useful
sketch to them, they will help him out with his bookie problem. Greenback enters and tells that
Wendell has come out of his coma. Dwight and Charlie visit him and he tells that he tells that the
night is a blur and tells that he visited his pastor before the gas station. Dwight visits Andre the
pastor and tells that he lied to him. Andre tells that Wendell was always channeling the ghosts
of his past. One included a white boy in foster care that he almost killed. Dwight gets back to the
station and tells that he ran the juvenile record and the boy that Wendell almost killed as Phil
Jorgeson. The sketch comes back. It is the cashier of the gas station.

Sutton is looking at a picture of Jamie, the girl that got away, and she is not there. He talks
to her mother and it is not Jamie who he was in love with. It was her mother. She is flattered but
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she tells that she is married and has been for 35 years. Sutton tells that he is available in case
she wants to 'transgress’. Dwight and Charlie visit Phil at the gas station and he tells that he
was at the press conference but only as a fan. Wendell told him that he wanted to meet him in
private and to pay for the medical bills that he and his family had to pay for so many years ago.
He was making coffee the night that Wendell got shot but had nothing to do with. Dwight finds a
poster of Wendell and the Porsche that was given to him. They see Randi Perkin’s girlfriend in the
photo too. Later they find out that Randi’s girlfriend Queenie, is the secretary of the dealership
and that the owner is a scumbag.

They bring in Randi and they question him of the shooting. He denies it and Charlie gets
a little heated. Dwight tells Charlie to take a break and talks to Randi alone. Dwight sees the
cross around Randi’s neck and he tells that he too was raised Methodist but like Randi, he
strayed away from the church. Behind the glass, Lt. Rice asks why Dwight is so upset with God.
Charlie tells that Dwight's dad was shot while on duty. Back in the interview room, Dwight tells
that Randi needs to confess to escape the harmful judgment of God. Randi looks at himself in
the mirror and confesses. At the hospital, Phil shakes Wendell’'s hand. At the church, Dwight is
singing in the choir and the episode ends.
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Suspicious Minds

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

( N\
Originally aired: Tuesday August 3, 2010
Writer: Joshua Harto, Liz W. Garcia
Director: Michelle Maxwell MacLaren
Show Stars: DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks),

Leonard Earl Howze (Reginald Greenback), Sam Hennings (Charlie
"Whitehead” White), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt. JC Lightfoot), Jason Lee
(Dwight Hendricks), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice)

Guest Stars: Richard Speight Jr. (Donald), Daniel Hugh Kelly (Tony Bellew), Beau
Brasso (Officer Meyers), Andrew Sensenig (Tyler Oney), Margo Swisher
(Female Cop), Timothy A. Vasquez (Detective)

Summary: Hendricks investigates when a plane safely lands but with nobody on-
board. Could a failed inventor who has apparently won the lottery be
responsible?

The scene opens with Detective Dwight
Hendricks in court and Sutton is taking
notes. He tells that whenever Dwight is
on the stand, he chews up the lawyer and
spits them out. Sutton and Charlie White
see that there is a new lawyer, Ms. Austin,

i who is questioning Dwight about Bryan
: Tisdale, a man accused of assault. She
0 tells him to tell what happened specifi-

cally. Dwight tells that Bryan hit the store
clerk after the clerk took a toy from the child after he told that it was reserved for another cus-
tomer. Ms. Austin asks if Dwight has children and he tells that he doesn’t. She tells that Dwight
doesn’t know then and tries to say that it is all. But Dwight wants to answer and talks about
when he was a child that his dad would have never hit anyone in front of him for a toy. The jury
decides against Bryan Tisdale and Ms. Austin looses her case. Afterward, Dwight tells Ms. Austin
that he didn’t mind her chewing him out and that she is doing her job. She tells that she enjoyed
it and Charlie tells that Sutton can put that in his notes.

At Tony’s birthday, Paula and Tony are high on drugs and Dwight comes up and gives Tony a
gift. Dwight asks if his mother is alright and she points out a plane and tells that it is coming right
for them. They clear a path for the plane and it lands safely. Dwight goes inside to investigate
and the plane is empty. Lt. Rice and Charlie arrive and Charlie tells that it is a ghost plane. Lt.
Rice tells that they need to sweep a 20 mile radius and Sgt. Kethan Roe comes up and tells that
he is the liaison for the FFA and tells that the plane has an auto-pilot feature allows for the plane
to land safely but someone would have had to trigger it on board. He tells that the owners are
Meg and Tyler Oney and gives the address to Lt. Rice and gives her his card and smiles.

Dwight and Charlie visit Tyler and Meg’s house and they enter after no answer. They enter
and no one is there. Dwight tells that they left a week ago. Donald, Tyler and Meg’s son and his
wife arrive and he talks about how they won millions of dollars in the lottery. Sgt. Roe comes
in and tells that he and his team asks Lt. Rice to dinner and she denies his request. Lt. Rice
asks about their leads and Charlie is still on the 'Ghost Plane’ theory. He tells that the plane
is warning them for something. Lightfoot tells them not to forget his 40th birthday coming up.
Greenback tells that he had to walk because his transmission broke down and had to walk to
work. He tells 3 days ago, there was a swipe of the hotel card and that is it on Tyler and Meg
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Oney. Sutton comes in and tells that the Oney’s have family in the system and they pause on
one family member living in Memphis.

Dwight and Charlie meet with Spencer Morgan and Dwight tells that Spencer’s ex-wife told
them that after Spencer beat her, he threatened to burn the whole family to the ground. He shows
his artificial leg. But Dwight tells that he looks able bodied and can get around fine. Spencer tells
that a woman named Jade and him were with each other. He tells that they need to be looking
at Tyler because the whole relationship was strained and that he was over there one time ago
and Meg was crying and saying that she didn’t want to be with Tyler anymore. Donald barges in
and tells that Spencer did it and Sutton is behind him and tases him. Sutton says that he told
him to stop but he refused. Dwight sits down with Donald and he tells that Spencer has a rock
solid alibi. Donald tells that there were strains of the finances and that Tyler invented the Solar
Powered Toaster. He cleaned out Meg’s last husband’s money right out for the invention and it
never took off. Donald tells that they won the lottery and problem solved.

Dwight goes through the Oney’s mail and Tyler and Meg had unpaid bills. Dwight tells that it
doesn’t make sense. Dwight sees that Greenback is thinking of taking the family in an RV and
Greenback tells that they are going to Daytona Beach. Sutton bought a solar toaster and gives
the DVD of the infomercial too. He tells that it is good with toast and horrible with bagels. Dwight
doesn’t understand how they won the lottery at the right time. Greenback goes to Chicken King
for some nighttime snack and sees a person loitering around back. He walks up and someone is
getting ’serviced’ around back by a guy. It is the King, owner of Chicken King Restaurant. They
are in Greenback’s car and they talk about the chicken and new logo. Greenback is disgusted
and King tells that he needs to pretend that nothing happened. He swears that he won’t do
anything else like that.

Dwight walks in Lt. Rice’s office and tells that Tyler and Meg never won the state lottery.
They got $500 in 2004 and nothing else. Dwight meets with his mother and she tells that she
remembers Meg and tells that they are not the type of people to do it. Dwight tells Paula that she
needs to be careful about marijuana and Dwight finds his father’s police manuals. He tells Paula
that Greenback is going to take his family on a family vacation and reminisces when his father
used to take them on vacation. Charlie walks up to Dwight and he has the Collective Stories of
Mark Twain and talks about the Million Pound Bank Note and tells that it is about a poor man
who got a million pound bank note and could never cash it and that people gave the poor man
things as to suck up to the rich. Charlie tells that is what Tyler and Meg did and Dwight tells that
Tyler never paid on the plane and that they gave it to him because of the pictures of the check.
Charlie tells that is how Tyler is going to get the Solar Toaster off the ground and tells that he
needed an investor.

At the station, Dwight and Charlie meet with Bennett Barns, the co-owner of the solar toaster,
and tell that he has motive to kill because of the failure of the product and that he needs to
explain. Bennett tells that Donald created a GPS remote control that has the power to tell ma-
chines where to go. Dwight and Charlie return to the plane and find Charlie’s ‘Ghost’. Dwight
gives Donald the GPS and that it was him who killed the two because of the fact that Tyler got all
the attention and tried to make the plane crash. But Donald tells that he created the mechanism
for his mother and that he helped them escape. He tells that Meg sent him and email and tells
of her plans. He tells that they purchased a cabin and that is where they are going to be. Dwight
and the team go to the place of Tyler and Meg and no one is there either. It is another dead end.

Greenback is balancing his books and he receives the hat from Chicken King, plus a couple
thousand dollars. He quickly hides it away. Lt. Rice meets up with Dwight at the bar and he tells
that he doesn’t think that the case is going anywhere. Lt. Rice tells that money warps family.
She tells that a couple needs financial security and it is hard. Dwight tells he went through the
bills and he is only paying on a storage unit. At the storage unit, Dwight and Charlie open it and
there is a smell. Dwight notices the box on the left has been opened. They open it and the body
of Meg Oney falls out.

Charlie tells that they ran the plates from the boat and it gave the location of Tyler Oney and
he is taken to the station. Dwight tries to get him to talk and he tells Dwight to write it all down
and he’ll sign it. He tells that he is done. He is a little crazy and tells that he is going to write
a book about his experiences. Dwight tells that he’ll have plenty of time for it. It is Lightfoot’s
40th birthday and Lightfoot tells that he should be in the woods communicating with nature.
Charlie tells that he is only 1/16 Indian. Greenback shows up and tells that Martin Eek instead.
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Dwight sees that Ms. Austin is there and Lightfoot tells that Dwight is going to sing. Dwight sings
’Caught in a Trap’. Later, Dwight is looking at the books of his father and finds wads of money in
all of them that are ripped in half. Dwight visits Ms. Austin and asks about wads of money that
is cut in half. She tells that it means that the police officer was dirty and so was the partner. She
offers Dwight a glass of wine but he tells that he needs to go.
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I Shall Not Be Moved

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

( N\
Originally aired: Tuesday August 10, 2010
Writer: Scott Kaufer
Director: Kevin Bray
Show Stars: DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks),

Leonard Earl Howze (Reginald Greenback), Sam Hennings (Charlie
'Whitehead” White), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt. JC Lightfoot), Jason Lee
(Dwight Hendricks), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice)

Guest Stars: Lyle Brocato (Jeff McManus), Beau Brasso (S.W.A.T.), Veronica
Cartwright (Miranda), Amber Gaiennie (Bridesmaid), Marco St. John
(Mayor Brian), Sandra Thigpen (Shirley), Timothy A. Vasquez (Detec-
tive), Clarence Williams III (Leroy Hitch)

Summary: When Dwight comes up against a volatile hostage situation, his so-
lution is to actually become a second hostage. As Dwight attempts to
defuse the situation from within, he begins to dig into his captor’s past,
only to find that it traces back to a cold case that has gone unsolved
for decades. Meanwhile, already concerned with Dwights risky move,
Lt. Rice finds personal trouble involving her ex-husband.

The scene opens with Lt. Rice entering
the bank and observing a long line. She
shows her badge and says that she is the
lieutenant for the Police Department and
she is told to wait in line. She lies to the
teller and says that she has a murder in-
vestigation that she needs to attend to
and that she doesn’t have time to wait.
Lt. Rice is allowed to sit down. She says
that she wants to discuss some funds
that were withdrawn from her account. Marissa, the teller, looks it up and confirms that $20,000
was withdrawn but it is not theft. It is a transfer from the bank to a personal account. The person
who did it is Carl Rice, Lt. Rice’s ex-husband. Lt. Rice says that she needs to put it back and she
fights with the teller to put it back. Marissa calls over security and Rice tells them to back off.
Dwight, Charlie and Sutton go to lunch and Sutton says that Charlie needs to change how he
eats lunch and says that he is on a new diet and it has worked really well. They get a call for a
Code 407, man with a gun, and Charlie asks for them to wait 5 minutes. Dwight and Sutton tell
Charlie that a man with a gun comes first.

They arrive on the scene and one of the neighbors says that a white man went to the old
black man’s house and the old man grabbed the young man and will not let him out. A hand
sticks out and fires a gun. Everyone ducks. Dwight tells Charlie to cover him and that he is going
inside. Charlie calls Dwight crazy and Dwight goes to the door. The old man answers the door
and Dwight says that he is a detective and wants to know what is going on. He says that he is
going to Kill the boy if Dwight does anything. SWAT pulls up and the old man tells Dwight to back
off. Dwight says that he knows the man and asks to go inside. The neighborhood is gathered and
the SWAT commander Hudson says that she has experience in hostage negotiations and asks
why did Dwight go inside? She says that she is setting up a team to go in if he doesn’t come out
soon. Inside, Dwight recognizes the old man as Sebastian LeGrange, a famous recording studio
owner that helped record all of the great singers of the Memphis past. He asks if he could give
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the young man water. When Dwight takes off the tape the man says that his name is Jeffrey. He
tries to give his last name but is cut off. Sebastian says that the young man is the devil and that
he has come to take him back to 'The Farm’ Dwight doesn’t understand because he never heard
of Sebastian being a criminal.

Dwight is inside the bathroom and calls to Charlie. He says that they need to run the name
Jeffery Mc. and see who it is. He comes out of the bathroom. Sutton is walking around and sees a
camera crew. He wants to share the story. Back inside, Dwight and Sebastian talk and Sebastian
hears the Police helicopter and he points the gun to the young man’s head. Dwight says that
they are news helicopters and Dwight shows him the news. He is shocked that his house is on
television and they turn to another channel and Sebastian sees Shirley, his daughter. Outside Lt.
Rice is talking to Shirley and she says that she hasn’t seen her father for 12 years and that she
doesn’t want to upset him more. Dwight calls Lt. Rice and she says that Jeffery is a processer and
that Sebastian is being evicted. Dwight looks at old photographs and there is a 5 digit number
24601 and it is a prison ID for Leroy Hitch and that Sebastian is not who he says he is. Shirley
wants to know who Leroy Hitch is and Lt. Rice says that her father is Leroy Hitch.

Dwight says that he knows the true identity of Sebastian and calls him Leroy. He tells Leroy
that he will only serve a few years and he says that he didn’t do anything to her. He says that
he was in love with a white girl named Emily and that he wrote her a song for her and they were
talking about going to Chicago. On Christmas eve, he snuck in the back door and found her
dead. Leroy says that he was sentenced to life in prison without the chance of parole. He escaped
from there and started a life in Memphis. Until today when the man comes and says that he
wants to take him back. Dwight tries to tell him the man was there with eviction notices. Dwight
asks Leroy if he still remembers the song. Leroy plays the song loud enough for the neighborhood
to hear too. Dwight says that he knows that Leroy didn’t kill the girl. He says that he will prove
that Leroy was innocent. In the bathroom, he says that Charlie needs to go to Louisiana and she
tells Sutton to go with him. They arrive in Arden and they look at the case file and Charlie says
that they never ran the prints on the murder weapon. Charlie calls Rice with the print results
and Leroy’s prints were on the knife. Dwight is inside and demands Leroy to tell the truth and
he says that the cops got it mixed up and he says that he played the song the day before for her
younger sister. Leroy is startled by a noise and accidently shoots the gun into the floor. Dwight
says that they need to call his Lieutenant and tell her everything is fine but it is too late and tear
gas gets thrown through the windows and SWAT enters. They get Leroy, Dwight and Jeffery.

Dwight arrives in the station and everyone claps. Dwight asks where Leroy is and Lt. Rice says
that Louisiana wanted him back. Dwight claims that Leroy didn’t do it and Rice says that Dwight
is going to give himself a heart attack. He tells Rice to give him a couple of sick days. Dwight
drives to Arden police department and Lt. Rice is there too and says that she hates Louisiana and
says that when Dwight has a feeling, he usually is right. They enter the station and go through
the case box. They find a cracked snow globe and Dwight says that Leroy didn’t have any money
for a gift. They visit Emily’s younger sister, Miranda and mention that Leroy played the song and
Rice asks if she ever told others that Leroy and Emily were dating. She says that she didn’t but
says that Brian Turlock gave Emily the snow globe and that he was devastated when she told
him that Emily was dating a black man. They ask if Brian is still around and she says that he is
their Mayor.

They visit Mayor Turlock and state they are asking questions about Emily. He says that it
was horrible and that they got the right man. He says that he had no problems with Leroy dating
Emily and that he even helped give blacks voting rights. He says that he was in the college the
night Emily was murdered and says that he has a conference meeting to attend. Outside the
town hall, Rice is talking with Marissa from the bank and says that they have not received any
paperwork to take the ex-husband off the account. Dwight walks behind her and says that he
has an accountant and she says that he is meddling. She asks if his ex and him are still at it,
and Dwight says he is not. She says that she has a girlfriend that would love him and Dwight
asks if she wants his accountant’s name. Rice suggests they work the case

Dwight and Rice return to Miranda and tell her that Brian didn’t mind Leroy. Miranda says
that it is her fault that Emily got killed because she told Brian and he must had yelled at Emily
and caused Emily to yell at Leroy. She says that Brian called from the university and said that
his car was soaked from the rain because he left his windows down. Dwight calls Sutton to get
the weather report on that Christmas Eve for Fayetteville, where the Mayor was attending the
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University. The weather information proves that Brian was not in Fayetteville and probably in
Arden which had rain on Christmas eve and that he probably wiped the weapon clean and the
prints are because Leroy touched it. Dwight says that Emily had head wounds from a blunt
object. They go to the station and look at the cracked snow globe and they run the prints and
it is the Mayor. The police officers escort their Mayor to prison and Leroy is set free. Leroy and
Dwight sing 'I shall not be moved’ and the episode ends.
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Don’t Be So Cruel

Season 1
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 9

4 )
Originally aired: Tuesday August 17, 2010
Writer: Joshua Harto, Liz W. Garcia, Angelina Burnett
Director: John Fortenberry
Show Stars: DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks),

Leonard Earl Howze (Reginald Greenback), Sam Hennings (Charlie
'Whitehead” White), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt. JC Lightfoot), Jason Lee
(Dwight Hendricks), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice)

Guest Stars: Amber Gaiennie (Bridesmaid), Mayra Leal (Juana), Kayla Mae Maloney
(Hilary Orland), James Aaron Smith (Colin Daly), Timothy A. Vasquez
(Detective)

Summary: An aid to a city councilman disappears on the day of his wedding to

the councilman’s daughter. But a missing reporter, a cryptic phone
message and a pair of cufflinks prove there’s more to the situation
than a groom’s cold feet. Meanwhile, Dwight’s mother makes a big life
decision that leaves Dwight a little uncertain about the future.

The scene opens with Dwight entering
into a hotel and sees his mom putting a
bread roll in her purse and asks if she
is going to be hungry later. Tony comes
over dressed in a suit and tells that it is a
beautiful day to have a nice meal. Dwight
is a little leery of Tony and his splurge
of money at a fancy hotel restaurant. He
orders tomato soup and Paula starts to
choke. Dwight helps her and an engage-
ment ring pops out. Dwight asks if the ring is for his mom and he tells him yes. Paula accepts
and Tony tells Dwight, "'Welcome to the Bellew Family’. Suddenly, a bride enters the hotel and
asks for a police officer. Dwight tells that he is an officer. The bride tells that her soon to be
husband, Greg, has run off. Thinking it is just pre-marriage jitters, Dwight tells her to give him
time. But she plays a message that was recorded to her voice mail from Greg. It is a fight and a
man’s voice too.

Lt. Rice and Charlie arrive and Sutton fills them in that the bride’s name is Hilary Orlen,
daughter to Councilman Orlen and the groom is Greg Watson. His family Don and Laurie Watson
are there too. Don tells that he talked and gave him diamond earrings to give to Hilary. A man
stands up and says that he and Greg were drinking at the bar until 1:30am. But Dwight looks at
the sign and it says that bar closes at Midnight. Sutton recognizes the man to be Collin Stevens, a
basketball player. He tells that everyone loves Greg and Dwight tells that they need total honesty.
Dwight asks if Greg went with him to the Leopard Lounge Strip Club and his parents deny it. But
Collin tells that he came but didn’t look at the girls. Sutton takes the initiative to go interview
the girls at the Strip Club and tells that they might have some 'information’. Dwight notices that
there are cameras in the wall statues. Larry the security guard tells that he can’t give footage
without a search warrant but Dwight tells that Larry owes him because of the fact that he stuck
up for him in high school that got him elected for president. He gives Dwight the security footage
from the other night but there is a problem. All the security tapes are stolen. Larry allows them
to look in Greg’'s room and tells that he could get into trouble and for them to hurry up. They
find Greg’s cell phone on the night stand and Dwight goes into the bathroom. He sees that the
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shower curtain has been ripped and that there is water in the shower still. He looks down and
sees a spot of red. It is blood. The dig up the tile and hit it with a lamp and find that it is a large
amount of blood.

Lt. Rice tells that the blood is Greg’s blood type and that it is probably personal and that there
is a political issue. Dwight tells that the person that killed Greg knew the hotel. Sutton tells that
the strippers tell that they didn’t see anything and he ’believes them. He tells to make sure, he is
going to give them the ‘once over’ again to make sure. Dwight and Charlie meet with Hilary and
tell that they found Greg’s blood and she cries. They move onto Councilman Orlen and they ask
if Greg had any enemies and he tells that everyone loved Greg. He pauses when he tells that they
got together for dinner. Councilman Orlen tells that Greg and Don got into an argument and that
Greg came back frustrated. They visit Don and he tells that Greg got up in the middle of dinner
and tells that he jumped up quickly. Sutton tells that there have been robberies in the hotel
and a man found an employee going through his things and the man got a broken nose. That
would explain things would be easier if it was an employee behind the murder. They look for the
murderer and in the kitchen, Dwight sees a girl with Diamond earrings. He stops her and she
runs to Manuel. They take them both to the station and Manuel tells the girl that the detectives
don’t speak Spanish and that they just need to deny it. But Dwight surprises when he speaks
Spanish back and he tells that he took pictures of Greg’s room and that the argument that they
heard from the phone was about Cocaine and Collin is involved. Sutton plays a message of a
voice mail from Collin and he tells that he will bash his head in if he doesn’t stay cool.

Lt. Rice meets with Collin and he comes clean about the cocaine but tells that he had nothing
to do with Greg’s disappearance and tells that Greg was seeing a girl on the side and that the
number should be in Greg’s phone. They locate the home of Rachel Stein and a girl answers the
door. She sees the badge and tells that her paperwork is good and she uses ’it’ for medicinal
purposes. She tells that Rachel is not there and that she had to go out of town. Dwight sees a
car in the yard and sees Rachel’s ID badge. He unlocks the door and finds folders. They point to
a Green Street Port Complex. It is a mall that is going to be built and Dwight sees that there are
pages ripped out. He uses a pencil and finds out that Orlen is going to get kickbacks for stopping
this and that Greg is messing with big people. Meanwhile, Lt. Rice and Paula are working out
and Lt. Rice tells that Paula needs to make sure that Paula needs to make Tony her second wife.
Rice tells that when men get married to a 2nd wife, it is a 20 something girl. She tells that she
needs to stop him from telling her to make him a sandwich and Rice tells Paula to have him keep
up his body. They laugh.

Back at the hotel, Dwight and Charlie tell Councilman Orlen that Greg was approached by the
Green Street Port Project and asks about Chester Bayon and Orlen tells that he is a corrupted.
He gets agitated to think that they hurt Gregg. Sutton tells that Chester is under investigation
for tax evasion and that he already put $5 million of his own money into the project. That gives
him motive if Greg wanted to shut it down. Sutton points out Chester and tells that he always
eats at the hotel. Charlie tells that Rachel never made it to Chicago. Charlie and Dwight sit down
with Chester Bayon and they question about Greg and Dwight suggests that Chester killed Greg
and Rachel because they were getting in the way. He tells that Dwight is crazy. A woman walks
in and gives Dwight a dirty look. Dwight tells things work differently around here. The woman
that gave Dwight the look is at the station and Sutton walks by and drops money into her cup.
She gets upset that he ruined her latte. The woman is Sgt. Birdie Thorpe. She is introduced to
Lt. Rice and Thorpe tells that it is nice to meet her and asks if she works out in a flirtatious tone.
Lt. Rice tells her to stand up and tells her to watch her tone. She asks what she is doing there
and Dwight tells that Thorpe has been building a case on Chester and Thorpe tells that Chester
set up a meeting tomorrow with Rick Stanislaw at the Green Port construction site.

Charlie, Dwight, and Sutton listen in on the conversation about girls for a circus. They leave
and Dwight spots a car that was there before. They approach the car and Sgt. Thorpe is above
them. Dwight gets the trunk open and the bodies of Greg and Rachel are in the back. Greg’s
body is positioned strangely. He is holding his side and finds a piece of paper. At the station, they
open the note and it is a bank statement and sees 500,000 was wired to HLO account. Dwight
finds that it stands for Hilary Lorraine Orlen. Dwight meets with Councilman Orlen and tells that
Chester is going to turn on him and Dwight tells that he is a murderer. Orlen tells that he knows
the town better then him and that everyone gives up their morals. Dwight sees that Councilman
is wearing the cuff lings that she was going to give to Greg and asks when he got the cuff lings.
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He tells when he meet for breakfast with Hilary.

Dwight and Charlie meet with Hilary and tell that they know about her giving the cuff lings
before Greg was found dead and that it was her that arranged the murder and tried to pin it
on Chester Bayon. They tells that they are going to find the man who did the killing and that
Hilary is going to jail. She tries to say that her father is a good man and that his reputation
should not be tarnished. Dwight tells that it was Hilary that tarnished the history of her family
and handcuffs her. As she walks off, Councilman Orlen tells that it is never going to stick. The
episode ends as always with Dwight singing. This time it is 'Don’t be Cruel’. He points to Tony
when he sings the words Don’t Be Cruel.
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I Want to Be Free

Season 1
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 10

( )
Originally aired: Tuesday August 24, 2010
Writer: Liz W. Garcia, Joshua Harto
Director: John Fortenberry
Show Stars: DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks),

Leonard Earl Howze (Reginald Greenback), Sam Hennings (Charlie
"Whitehead’” White), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt. JC Lightfoot), Jason Lee
(Dwight Hendricks), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice)

Guest Stars: Daniel Hugh Kelly (Tony Bellew), Brett Rickaby (Zachary Drake),
Pruitt Taylor Vince (Martin Matthews), Tamlyn Tomita (Noreen Drake),
Donna DuPlantier (Gloria the M.E.), Carol Sutton (Ruby Cooper), Jerry
Leggio (Dr. Thomas Burke), Micaiah McZeal (Bella), T.J. Bellow Jr.
(Dee-Dee Cooper), Tonea Stewart (Miss Angelin)

Summary: A man with amnesia turns up with a bullet wound in the middle of a
seedy section of Memphis, leading Dwight to believe he may be con-
nected to a three-year-old unsolved case involving the beating death of
a little girl. Lt. Rice, facing financial difficulties after her ex-husband
steals a large sum of cash, contemplates a career change.

The scene opens with Dwight singing.
There is light all around him and it is a
dream sequence. He goes in his dress-
ing room and Gary Shilling gives him a
necklace with the initials T.C.B. (Taking
Care of Business). He is interrupted by
his mother and Tony and they have a
baby. A little girl named Bella shows up
and takes Dwight to the woods. Bella is
running away from Dwight and he comes
up to a blue tarp in the grass. He lifts it
up and it is him. Dwight is startled awake
and he is in his office with Lt. Rice telling
him that he hit it, while she is pulling
: : on her clothes. Dwight wakes up to the
phone ringing and it is Charlie. Dwight is no longer dreaming. Charlie tells that they have a
shooting that happened but the victim has amnesia. Dwight hangs up the phone and looks in
the mirror, shuttered by the dreams he just had.
Dwight arrives on the scene and Sutton tells that the man got shot and they don’t know who
he is. He shows that he had only a pack of gum and a bus pass. Dwight wants to know why a
man from the Suburbs was doing in the run down neighborhood. Dwight sees a piece of paper on
the ground and Sutton tells that the man had it with him. A hippie’ crystal falls out and Dwight
tells that it is a gypsy trick to steal someone’s wallet. They go see Ms. Angelina and she tells that
Dwight is going to have to make a choice and that he is coming to a crossroad. Charlie tells her
to come clean and she gives up the wallet she stole. The shooting victim is a Zachary Drake.
Dwight asks Ms. Angelina what Zachary wanted from her and she tells that Zachary asks if he
was going to hell or not.
Dwight visits Dee-Dee at the restaurant and he gives Dwight another tape of music. Dwight
tells that he had a dream about his sister Bella. He tells that his grandmother did too. He tells
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that he will see him tomorrow. Dwight tells Lt. Rice about Zachary and tells that he lives with
his wife and kid in Germantown and that he was in town for the psychic read. She tells that
he should visit the wife. Dwight sees that Lt. Rice is putting her resume into a company called
Platinum Security’ and wants to know what is going on. She tells that her ex-husband hasn’t
given back the money that he took and that she has to take on a job that is better paid. Dwight
tells that she needs to do something and she tells that she is handling things. Lightfoot tells
Dwight about the Men of the MPD Calendar and tells that he wants him in it. Charlie jumps in
and says that he will do it and so does Sutton, but it is clear that Lightfoot only had intended to
have Dwight join.

Dwight goes to visit Noreen Drake and she tells that she doesn’t know why Zachary is acting
strange and tells that he has been dead for three years. She tells that she doesn’t know him any
more and that he is not himself. She tells that he goes out drinking with a high school friend
and Dwight and Noreen go back on forth and finally come up with Martin Mathews as the person
they sold Zachary’s old car and that he has never been the same. They visit with Martin Mathews
and he is not sober at all. He tells that Zachary and him were not friends and that he bought
his car off him and that is all their friendship went. However, at the station, Dwight and Charlie
find out that there have been money wired to Martin’s account every moth from Zachary. Sutton
comes in and has his best suit with him. There is a line of muscle-clad men in the hall and he
asks one of the female officers and asks if they are all for the Calendar. She tells that they are.

Back at Martin’s, Dwight and Charlie break in and find that Martin had a shredding party
and they find pictures of a trunk with a red substance in it. They recognize it as Zachary’s old
car that he sold and they go around back and find the car. They open the trunk and find the
blood. Martin is there with a rifle. Dwight points his gun on him and tells him to put the gun
down. He realizes who they are and laughs and tells that he almost shot them. He puts down his
gun and stumbles over because he is so drunk. They bring him back inside and tell him that he
lied to them and that he has been taking money from Zachary every month. Martin tells that it
was a bribe to not go to the police about the blood in the car. Dwight has an idea and he goes
to the Evidence Room and pulls out Bella’s old file. Lt. Rice asks what he is doing and Charlie
tells that he is looking at Bella’s files because he has a thought of who could have killed her. He
tells that he had a dream about her the same night they found Zachary. He tells that it is not
a coincidence. She tells that she had a dream too and that she was an Eagle and tells that she
can’t take care of everyone. Dwight tells that Rice is leaving.

They visit Noreen again and ask about the car. She tells that she doesn’t know anything about
the car besides that Zachary would not let anyone take it. She tells that Zachary was busy with
a time capsule thing for his High School and that gives Dwight the idea to go dig it up. Upon
uncovering it, they find an envelope with Zachary’s name on it. Inside it there is a barrette.
Dwight flashbacks to Bella having such a barrette and tells Charlie that they have her killer
finally. At the station, the crime lab tells that the fingerprints that they retrived from the results
are that of Zachary and the doctor tells that they will run the blood that was found in the car.
The doctor in charge messed it up years ago to what Charlie tells, was hitting the bottle too hard.
Dwight and Charlie visit Zachary and tell that they are going to arrest him once he gets a release
from his doctor. Dwight visits Bella’s grandmother and she tells that he is a bad cop and that
he allowed for the man to walk free for so many years. Dwight can here the tension in her voice
and asks if they own a gun. She tells that she doesn’t but Dwight sees a hippie crystal on your
nightstand. He goes to visit Ms. Angelina.

When he arrives he grabs her cell phone and sees that Angelina called Bella’s grandmother
the night Zachary was shot. She tells that Dee-Dee shot Zachary because of the fact that he knew
it was him that killed his sister. Later Dwight is in the restaurant and Lt. Rice comes in and tells
that she heard of the decision he has to make. Dwight juggles with the fact that he might have
to arrest Dee-Dee too. Lt. Rice tells that he could ignore it and that she would ignore it to. He
ultimately decides to arrest Dee-Dee. The doctor from the Lab tells that they cannot get a DNA
from the blood in the car and Dwight is upset. Charlie accused the doctor from tampering with
it years ago. Dwight is going to have to get a confession out of Zachary.

Dwight takes Zachary where Bella was found and his memory eventually comes back and he
tells that he hit her with his car and that he took her to the soft marsh to let her rest because
he put it in his mind that she was sleeping. He cries. The next morning, Dwight pulls up to a
house with the mailbox K. Rice. At the station, Zachary is turning himself in and Dwight catches
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a glimpse at Bella’s grandmother. He walks up to her and she thanks him for being a good cop.
Lt. Rice tells that she is staying with MPD because her ex-husband wired the money he took out
of her account and put it into her account. Sutton gives Dwight thumbs up and Rice tells Dwight
thank you. The episode ends as it always does with Dwight singing a song. This time it is 'T Want
to Be Free’ and Charlie, Sutton, Rice, and Lightfoot are looking at the 'Men of MPD’ Calendar and
it has Charlie and Dwight in it. Sutton made the front cover. In the back you can see that Gary
Shilling showed up for it as well.
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At the River

Season 2
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 1

( \
Originally aired: Tuesday June 14, 2011
Writer: Jan Nash
Director: Michael Katleman
Show Stars: Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice), Leonard

Earl Howze (Reginald Greenback), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt. JC Light-
foot), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks), DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton),
Sam Hennings (Charlie 'Whitehead” White)

Guest Stars: Ali Hillis (Stacy Ekler), Connor Gibbs (Jack Ekler), Eric Jungmann
(Joey Ekler), Garrett S. Kruithof (Victor), Drew Powell (Clay Williams),
Scott A. Martin (Richard Turner), Christopher Berry (Travis), Felder
Charbonnet (Officer Jacobs), Beau Garrett (Claire Ryan)

Summary: The squad at the 7th precinct investigates one of its own in the opening
episode of the second season. Dwight, along with a temporary partner
from IAB, must determine if the officer was dirty or collecting informa-
tion to present to his superiors. The death and the officer’'s surviving
Son brings back memories to Dwight of his own Father and life. Mean-
while Charlie partners with Lt. Rice, who wants to promote Whitehead
up and out of her department.

The scene opens with Dwight and White-
head arriving on a scene of a crime. A
police officer has been shot. His name is
Don Ekler and Dwight says that he knows
him and says that he was a good guy. He
asks Officer Sutton to look around for the
gun that killed Don. Lt. Rice comes up
and tells that his partner, Clay Williams,
went for some coffee and Dwight tells that
they are going to need to get the sched-
ule for the patrol car. Rice tells that she
took them so that they wouldn’t get 'bor-
rowed’. She tells Whitehead and Dwight
that Don was being investigated by In-
ternal Affairs. She says that she wants
Dwight to work with Internal Affairs on this and make sure that they honor Don. Whitehead
takes offense and tells her that she can’t split them up. Dwight agrees and asks if they could
have someone else. She says that she has to report this to Don’s wife and tells Dwight to go with
her. Dwight tells Whitehead that it is nothing and says that they just have to find the killer.

Lt. Rice and Dwight go to see Stacy Ekler and Rice tells Dwight that they are going to find
enough information that is going to confirm that Don was a good cop. If not, then they need to
avoid giving him honor for it. The door opens and Stacy is there. She asks what is wrong. Jack,
Don’s son comes up and Dwight distracts him so that Rice can tell Stacy the bad news. Outside,
Dwight talks to Jack some more and Jack tells that Don yelled at him for touching his gun.
Dwight says that he knows the anger that was felt and says that he shouldn’t touch guns and if
he sees one, he needs to report it. Rice tells that she has a list of Don’s associates and tells that
he can share it with Internal Affairs. Later at the station, Dwight and Whitehead talk to Officer
Williams and he says that Don told him that he did something that he wished that he didn’t do.

41



Memphis Beat Episode Guide

He says that Don told him that it has to do with 'The Whiskey Snake’ bar. Dwight goes to meet
Internal Affairs Detective Ryan and she introduces herself to him.

Meanwhile, Whitehead and Lt. Rice visit the person involved in a fight at "The Whiskey Snake’.
He says that there were two people who jumped him. Lt. Rice tells that the report only mentioned
one. The man says that a police officer matching Don’s description was there too that took one
of the men aside and yelled at him. Rice says that Don let a man go on an assault charge, but
not enough to cause him to get fired. Rice tells that she saw that Whitehead took the Lieutenant
exam. She tells him that she will give him some time to study and says that anyway she can
get him out of her department, the better. Meanwhile, Dwight sits down with Detective Ryan and
she says that Don was allegedly part of the White Supremeness group. Dwight gets upset with
her that she is trying to destroy Don’s reputation. Back at the station, Sutton talks to Greenback
about how he was when he first started on the force. He says that he imagined that he would
get robot parts. Greenback says that the bullet had a special armored tip on it and says that the
killer wanted to kill Don.

Dwight and Ryan go to Stacy’s place and she doesn’t understand why Internal Affairs is
involved. Dwight says that he is going to look for Don'’s interest. Joey Ekler, Don’s cousin comes
in and tells that he is going to the funeral parlor. Dwight asks if they could talk to Jack. Afterward,
Dwight and Ryan find a bunch assault rifles and illegal guns in a box. They get back to the station
and Dwight is fighting for the honor of Don while Ryan is claiming that they have proof. Lt. Rice
intervenes and tells every to dress in their best uniforms for the funeral. Lt. Rice tells Ryan to go
to her office and asks her what she knows of Dwight. She tells that he sings on the side and Rice
tells that his father died in the line of duty. Rice tells her to finish the investigation before they
point the blame on anyone. Later at the Wake, Officer Williams gets up and tells that Don was a
good man. Dwight starts singing 'When the Saints Go Marching’. Everyone joins in on the song
and they give their final goodbyes to Don.

The next morning, Dwight is hungover when Ryan comes in. She looks around and sees all of
Dwight’s collection and is amazed. She tells that she has a lead and he says that he will get his
pants on. They go to a trailer and hear someone running. The man runs away and they chase
after him. After they get a ways out of the way, the trailer blows up. Afterward, the ambulance
and fire crew come and Dwight and Ryan give descriptions. They conflict, but get the right
description. Greenback says that the man was making armor piercing bullets. Rice doesn’t think
that Don was right, but Dwight tells her to give him until sunup to find the guy. She tells that
he has until then to find the killer. At the station, Dwight’s mother brings in Dwight’s father’s
old hat and tells that he can wear it. Whitehead brings in wrenches and Dwight recognizes them
to be a certain brand where only one place makes them. He says that the guy who tried to blow
them up works at the store.

Later that evening, they bring in the guy and he tells that he was only paid to make bullets.
He tells that Don was there when he took the job, but he was trying to tell his friend who is in the
gang to get out. Dwight goes up to Lt. Rice and ask if that is enough for a good honor burial. She
says that it is. She tells that Ekler’s 'friend’ might show up at the service. Later at the funeral,
Dwight walks up to Jack and tells him that he is there for him. After the funeral, Dwight sees
a man leaning against a car. The man punches Dwight and the officers take him into custody.
Whitehead talks to him at the station and pretends to play a radio and tells that the walls have
ears. The man writes down names of people involved in a raid. Later that night, Dwight and Ryan
are on stakeout and Ryan tells that his team are doing good in the investigation and asks why
he sings. Dwight says that he likes to perform. She reaches for another SD card and they kiss.

The next day, they look at the pictures and Lt. Rice comes up and tells that the FBI thought
that the militia was out because of the arrest of the leader. She says that the trial is not over
yet on it. Dwight realizes that the judge residing in the case has received death threats. They
find Judge Winslow and find that he doesn’t have his vest on. Suddenly there is a gun fired and
Dwight shoots at a truck and kills the guy driving. Dwight shows the pictures of men to Stacy
and she says that Joey has been a security guard in the area where Judge Winslow is. Sutton
shows pictures to the man who was assaulted and he picks out Joey as the second person.
Sutton takes him to Dwight and he says that Don knew about the militia members and Joey
tries to go away. Dwight tells that he is protecting others. Joey admits that he was the one who
killed Don. Later, Lt. Rice asks about the paperwork and Whitehead says that he is done with
it. He says that he is not coasting. The episode ends with Dwight meeting with Ryan about the
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report. She tells that it is already written and Dwight smiles when he reads it.
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Inside Man

Season 2
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired:
Writer:

Director:

Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Tuesday June 21, 2011

Bill Chais

Elodie Keene

Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice), Leonard
Earl Howze (Reginald Greenback), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt. JC Light-
foot), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks), DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton),
Sam Hennings (Charlie 'Whitehead” White)

Thomas Lennon (Keith Grant), Beau Garrett (Claire Ryan), Ali Hillis
(Stacy Ekler), Veronica Berry (Allison Forrest), Beau Brasso (Officer
Meyers), Felder Charbonnet (Officer Jacobs), Julie Ann Doan (Reha-
bilitation Counselor), Glen Warner (Homeless Man), Elizabeth Rose
Young (Detective), Gregory Sporleder (Jeffrey Gibbs), Jake McDorman
(Shane Vereen), Michael Reilly Burke (Miles Ahomana / Miles Hart),
Dennis Bagneris (shady crook), Jeanne Caldarera (Rich person #2),
Kristin Samuelson (Rich person #1), Lauren Swinney (elderly woman),
Liann Pattison (Mrs. Vereen), Robert Larriviere (bitter man)

A string of stolen safes could possibly be the work of the Fox Meadows
burglars, who stole safes from more than a dozen homes 10 years
ago. Helping in the investigation is an overly eager accountant who
develops a crush on Lt. Rice. Meanwhile, Whitehead decides to try

rebranding himself.

The scene opens with Dwight and White-
head going to a crime scene and White-
head talks about the facial that he got.
Dwight admits that it is smooth, but will
continue to give him a hard time about it.
Sutton says that it is a robbery and the
homeowners are Mike and Laura Lane, a
rich couple. They see that the wall has
a hole in it and Whitehead and Dwight
say that the Fox Meadow Burglars are
back. Back at the station, Lt. Rice gets
off the phone with the Mayor and tells
Dwight that the Mayor wants the burglars
caught. Dwight tells that they are going
to do the best they can. Rice puts on the

news where the press secretary to the Mayor tells everyone to call in if they have any information
for a reward of $50,000. Dwight does a countdown and then suddenly every phone in the station

rings.

The Memphis Police Department is littered with people who think that they have information
on the burglaries. One citizen, Keith Grant has something of interest. Whitehead and Dwight are
interested in his knowledge of the information on the case. He says that the burglars have been
using PE4 and not C4 explosives and says they are out of PE4. Keith tells the two Detectives to
look into construction sites. Later, Dwight and Whitehead check out the last known associates
to the Fox Meadow Burglaries. Dwight asks what is up with Whitehead and he says that he is
re-branding himself. Dwight tells him that he doesn’t like it. They get back to the station and
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Lt. Rice asks about Keith. Dwight says that they are following the leads and Lt. Rice says that
a construction site was hit and PE4 was stolen. Dwight realizes that the Robbers now have an
entire load of PE4 to continue their crime spree.

They go to Keith’s place and he is excited that the construction site was hit because it proves
that he was right. Dwight and Whitehead start to suspect Keith for being involved and he laughs.
They look at his journals on the Fox Meadow Burglaries and the Detectives ask to take them.
Keith asks if they have a warrant. Dwight and Whitehead get back to Lt. Rice and ask for a
warrant, but she tells them that they are going to have to go to Keith and play nice to get the
journals. She suggests that they bring him on as a consultant. Later, Keith comes into the station
and Dwight tells that he is a consultant that has some important information. Whitehead comes
in late and Keith chastises him. However, Whitehead tells that he is sorry. Keith starts to tells
about what he knows and Dwight tells him to get to the point. He passes out papers on his
findings when Lt. Rice comes in. Keith gets distracted and can’t really talk. Dwight asks why he
has Miles Ahomana as a suspect. He tells that they had a suspect named Miles Hart and Keith
says that Miles came back through the country as Miles Ahomana.

Keith, Dwight and Whitehead get to Mile’s house and Keith asks about Lt. Rice. They tell
that they are on the job now. They are invited around in the backyard where Miles and his two
Hawaiian wives are having a barbecue. Keith is talking to his wives while Dwight and Whitehead
talk to Miles. However, Miles asks what he is doing. Keith says that the earrings look lovely.
Outside, Keith says that the earrings are from one of the Fox Meadow Burglaries. Dwight tells
him to be quiet, but Miles is looking out his window. They get back to the station and Lt. Rice
tells that they have had another break in. She tells that she needs someone with information
on the case and suggests Whitehead to come with her. Lt. Rice and Whitehead get to the house
meeting with the other wealthy homeowners and Whitehead tells her that she needs to smile and
reassure them it is alright. She tells that she is worried about him. They get inside and Shane, a
son of one of the wealthy homeowners, says that he has to give her over to the wolves. She has a
hard time talking to them and Whitehead tells her to smile, but the homeowners don’t like it.

Back at the station later, Whitehead, Lt. Rice and Dwight talk over the case. Dwight says
that Miles couldn’t do the robberies because he has a fracture bone in his leg. Dwight gets a
phone call. Keith was jumped in his apartment. Dwight gets there and finds that Keith’s journals
are gone and he doesn’t have copies. Dwight takes him to his home and tells him to get some
sleep without touching his stuff. Keith touches Dwight’s guitar and tells him to play him a song.
Dwight says that he checked Keith’s record and found that Keith was mugged at the time of the
Fox Meadow Burglaries. He tells that he lost his wife through a divorce because of his obsession
with the case. Dwight agrees and says that it will be only one song. He sings. Afterward, Dwight
gets a call and says that he is on his way. He gets to the house where Rice and Whitehead met
with the concerned citizens. Dwight talks to Mrs. Vereen and she tells her son Shane not to
drink. Shane tells that he is concerned and is only having a drink.

Later, Dwight tells that it is interesting that the house wasn’t broken in the same and suspects
that Shane is the burglar. Dwight gets over to Mrs. Vereen’s home and asks about Shane. He says
that Shane is involved in the burglaries and she admits that she saw him leave right after Dwight
left. She tells Dwight to bring in Shane safely. Dwight and Keith go to Dr. Jeffery Gibbs, a drug
counselor. He tells Dwight that his clients don’t fight drugs because drugs don't fight fair. He
says that he doesn’t know where Shane is. At the station, Miles is there and Whitehead says that
they know about the Fox Meadow Burglaries and Miles says that the statute of limitations is over
on it and confesses that he was the one. Whitehead looses it and Greenback asks if he needs to
interrupt and Lt. Rice tells him to give Whitehead a moment. Miles says that he "hypothetically’
taught someone his secrets. Whitehead threatens to beat him up and Greenback tells him to
come with him.

Dwight gets off the phone and Keith shows that he has a friend on social network of a friend
of Shane’s girlfriend. He shows a picture and Dwight sees that Mark Coopersmith is her father
and lives in Boon Lake. Keith gets excited, but Dwight ditches him. Sutton offers to take Keith
on a ride in the patrol car. Later in a car, Dwight and Whitehead wait for the warrant and Dwight
tells Whitehead that he has changed as a cop and says that they are both getting older. Dwight
tells him that he doesn’t have to re-brand himself. They get the warrant and go to the door. They
are interrupted by Shane aiming a gun at them. He says that he thought it was someone else.
He says that he did the break-in as retaliation for his rich friends turning their back on him, but

46



Memphis Beat Episode Guide

after that his partner wanted him to keep going. Dwight asks who his partner is and they realize
that it is Jeffery Gibbs. Later, Greenback finds that Gibbs keeps a storage facility and Dwight
and Whitehead go there.

When they arrive, Keith pulls up and tells that he wants to go in with them, but Dwight hand-
cuffs him to the car. They go inside and find that Gibbs has all the things from the burglaries.
Keith tries to get out of the handcuffs, but hides when he sees Gibbs coming with a gun. He turns
on the radio with his foot and inside, Dwight hears the music. He says that Keith is warning them
of something. Dwight goes out and is tackled by Gibbs. They fight and Gibbs runs off. However,
Whitehead hits him in the chest with a baseball bat and they arrest him. Later at the station,
Keith tells Dwight that he never 'Deputized’ him so Dwight does and tells that their relationship
is over now. Keith says that it is alright because he has $50,000 to spend now. Sutton brings in
Miles and he tells that he is suing them. However, Sutton says that he can be charged for the
Fox Meadow Burglaries because he left the country afterward and therefore, it doesn’t matter.
The episode ends with Dwight walking into Lt. Rice’s office to find Keith singing to her. She tries
to tell Dwight to help her, but he walks away smiling.
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Lost

Season 2
Episode Number: 13
Season Episode: 3

( \
Originally aired: Tuesday June 28, 2011
Writer: Jim Adler
Director: Aaron Lipstadt
Show Stars: Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice), Leonard

Earl Howze (Reginald Greenback), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt. JC Light-
foot), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks), DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton),
Sam Hennings (Charlie 'Whitehead” White)

Guest Stars: Heather McComb (Lisa), Holland Roden (Jill Creskoe), Felder Char-
bonnet (Officer Jacobs), Edward J. Clare (Forensics Officer J. Stall),
Lance E. Nichols (Hank Miller), Melody Noel (Uniformed Female Cop),
Graham Rogers (Damon Eagan), Billy Micheal Wallace (Teen), Nedal
Yousef (Trooper)

Summary: A despondent father comes to Dwight to help search for his missing
daughter. When it appears she may have been the victim of foul play,
suspicion immediately falls on her abusive husband. Lt. Rice finds
herself left out of a big piece of family news, and Whitehead goes to a
surprising source when he needs to brush up his firearm skills.

The scene opens with Dwight and White-
head at the firing range. Dwight shows
that he has great marksmanship whereas
Whitehead doesn’t have any. Dwight
teases him and asks if he got startled by
the gunfire. They get into the station and
Sutton sniffs them and says that he loves
the smell of gunpowder in the morning.
He tells that they got Smart Phone up-
grades and every Detective gets one so
that they can keep in touch each other
N better. Dwight tries to decline, but Sutton
says that they don’t have a choice. Dwight sees a man sitting down and Sutton says that his
name is Ted Creskoe. He says that Ted wants to report a missing person. Dwight sits down with
Ted and asks about the missing person. It is Jill, Ted’s 21-year-old daughter, who has been
missing for 4 years. Ted says that he hasn’t had the chance to tell that Jill's mother Lila passed
away and says that Jill always sent a card once a month and she hasn’t written a card for a
month. The last card was a ’see you soon’ card. Dwight tells that he will see what he can do.

Lt. Rice is in her office talking on the phone when Dwight and Whitehead walk in. Dwight
says that a daughter of a man is missing and she tells them to go find the girl. Greenback tells
that there are no hits on the picture. Dwight looks through Jill’s mail that Ted had and they get a
location of where she could be. Dwight and Whitehead get the information that people know her,
but don’t really know her. They realize that Jill was a waitress because of the people who saw her
say that she had an apron on a lot of the time and paid in change. They get to the 5th restaurant
and the waitress tells that she will be right with them. Dwight stops her and Whitehead asks if
she has ever seen Jill. The waitress introduces herself as Lisa, the owner of the restaurant and
says that Jill was her employee. Lisa says that Jill hasn’t been to work in a week. They ask where
they can find Jill Creskoe’s address. Lisa says that she only knows Jill by the name of Jill Simon.

Dwight and Whitehead go to the home of Derek and Jill Simon and Derek answers the door. He
tells that Jill left two weeks ago to visit her mother, but State Trooper came by and told him that
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they found Jill’s car and that the current took Jill’s body. Dwight gets a message from Greenback
that tells that Derek has priors for drunk and disorderly and several assault charges. Dwight sees
that Jill's things are already packed up. Dwight goes up to Derek and takes a picture of scratches
on Derek’s arm. He tells Whitehead of the scratches on his arm and there is something that isn’t
right. Sutton tells Dwight that the State Trooper has confirmed that Jill's car was found. Lt. Rice
tells Dwight to move on to the next case, but Dwight tells that it is not over because Derek had
defensive wounds on his arm. She tells him to build a timeline. She asks where Greenback is,
but Dwight tells that he doesn’t know. Dwight asks Sutton to find out what is up with Lt. Rice.
Whitehead comes up and Dwight asks where he was. He says that he was swapping out his gun
because the sight was off on it apparently.

They go to Lisa, Jill's boss and she is devastated that Jill is dead. Whitehead asks why she
lied to them about not talking to Jill. She says that Jill told her that she was leaving Derek.
She tells that Derek is dangerous. Dwight tells that they need to find where Derek made a
mistake. Meanwhile, Greenback goes into Lt. Rice’s office and she tells that she is looking for
the Rice/Bingham engagement party. He realizes that it is Rice’s daughter and she asks when
the wedding is and he says that it is not there. She tells Greenback to keep this between them
alone. Later, Whitehead looks through the car that they pulled out and finds nothing besides a
thread from a sweater. Dwight finds that the car was put into Neutral when it went into the water.
Dwight says that Derek was the one who killed Jill and brings him in the station. However, he
says that he has an alibi for his time. Derek says that he didn’t kill her and says that they fought
only and that they had that type of relationship. Lt. Rice tells Ted that they may have reason to
believe that Derek may have murdered her. Ted says that it is his fault because he was too strict.

Greenback and Sutton go through the house and Greenback lost his phone. Sutton shows
that he has it and says that he wants to know what is going on with him and Rice. He tells that
he was told not to tell, but Sutton tells that he has to tell or he will drop his phone in the water.
Greenback gives in and tells him. Meanwhile, Lt. Rice visits District Attorney Hank Miller and
tells that she needs a favor from him so that she doesn’t tell about his little secret. He agrees
to push the financial records. Later, they find that Derek kept Jill on a short leash and Dwight
tells that Jill had a separate account. Whitehead asks if he is a bad shot and says that he has to
re-qualify to take the Lieutenant exam. Dwight tells that Sutton is a great teacher, but Whitehead
tells that he would never. Dwight sees that Jill had a Life Insurance Policy on her. They go to
Edwin Meeks and Whitehead says that if he helps, he will get the credit. They find out that if she
was going to die, the money would go to her mother. If the mother is dead, the money would go
to Ted.

They get to the station and tell Lt. Rice that Ted possibly killed his own child because of the
fact that he is going to get money if Jill is dead. Lt. Rice meets with Ted and tells that they have
him suspected of murder. Ted says that he didn’t think it mattered and says that he never laid
a finger on Jill. Lt. Rice tells that they know that he used to drink and beat his wife. Dwight
tells that they are trying to find information, but nothing is coming up. Lt. Rice gets upset and
Dwight walks in her office and tells her to leave personal things out of the office. She tells him to
tread lightly and she realizes that Dwight and the rest of the station know about the engagement.
He says that she should be happy. She tells that she didn’t know about the wedding and tells
that if her daughter needs to call if she wants her to go. Whitehead goes up to Sutton and asks
if he wants to go to the range and fire a few rounds. Sutton says that he doesn’t want to, but
Whitehead says that he wants to observe his style. Whitehead gets a call from the State Trooper
and they go to find a woman that was rushed up the river. Dwight says that the woman that
they found was beaten before drowned because her skull was split open. At the shooting range,
Sutton tries to give Whitehead some pointers and he isn’t listening. Sutton shows Whitehead
that he is so good, that he made 6 bullets go in the same hole.

Ted gets escorted into the same jail cell as Derek and watch. Greenback is put in the jail cell
with them and says that he is being accused for killing the girl. Derek tells him to back off and
tells that Jill was a piece of trash. Ted gets upset with Derek and he punches him. Dwight says
that they didn’t kill Jill because they didn’t care about the Medical Examiner report. They go
back to Lisa’s restaurant and find the place locked. Around back, they see Jill's dog inside and
break in because the dog is telling him that he is being held against his own will. They get inside
and find the sweater that thread was caught on the car door. They get Lisa in the station and
they tell that murder is a serious offense. Lisa tells that she didn’t kill Jill and says that Derek
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didn’t either. Greenback says that the body is not Jill. Dwight says that Jill may have reinvented
herself again. He goes back inside and tells Lisa that he will make sure that Jill is not going to
go back to Derek. Dwight finds Jill at a motel and tells that he is going to make sure that Derek
is not going to touch her again.

Back at the station, Ted waits as Dwight and Jill go up to him. Ted says that Lila loved her so
much and Jill tells that she missed her and Ted tells that he wants to apologize to her and says
that he is sorry for all the time that she didn’t get to spend time with her mother. The episode
ends with Dwight going up to Derek and tells him to stay away from Jill, Whitehead getting
lessons from Sutton and corrects his shooting and Lt. Rice calling up her daughter and talking
to her after years. Dwight ends with singing 'Always On My Mind’.
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Flesh and Blood

Season 2
Episode Number: 14
Season Episode: 4

e N
Originally aired: Tuesday July 5, 2011
Writer: Jim Adler
Director: Aaron Lipstadt
Show Stars: Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice), Leonard

Earl Howze (Reginald Greenback), Abraham Benrubi (Sgt. JC Light-
foot), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks), DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton),
Sam Hennings (Charlie 'Whitehead” White)

Guest Stars: Danielle Panabaker (Sister Catherine), Jillian Armenante (Delores),
Graham Rogers (Damon Eagan)
Summary: Dwight and Whitehead are on the case of a reported missing person,

but they are shocked to discover that a nun may be their prime sus-
pect. And when Sutton discovers an abandoned baby in his car, he
turns to Dwight’s mom, Paula Ann, to teach him baby basics.

The scene opens Sutton responding to a
disturbance call at a retirement home. An
elderly man tries to tell Sutton all the
details of what is going on and Sutton
says that he will handle it. He knocks
on a door and a man answers the door
with nothing but a cake to cover his pri-
vate parts. He apologizes and says that he
thought that Sutton was someone else.
He tells that it is alright and for him to
keep it down. However, Sutton realizes
that the room that he thought was the
room reported to have the disturbance
was elsewhere. A door in the corner of the
hall slips open and Sutton approaches.
He ﬁnds the place tossed and finds a man in a pool of blood on the bed. He calls it in and Dwight
and Whitehead arrive on scene. They see that the man was beaten and left for dead. However,
they see that there is someone else’s blood on the bed too before the man. They find that the
man’s name is Sam Walter, a Defense Attorney. Dwight says that they need to look into his work
and see if any of the clients are to blame for this.

Meanwhile, Greenback tells that Sam is on the lease of the apartment and that Sam and his
wife live in Germantown. Lt. Rice thinks that Sam was having this on the side to cheat on his wife
because a couple of residents saw a young woman with Sam. Greenback says that Sam’s wife
is not home and she isn’t picking up her phone either. Rice tells that they may have themselves
a suspect. Dwight and Whitehead get to the office of Sam and sit down with his secretary. She
is emotional and says that Sam was working with things off the books. She shows them a list
of people who Sam was working with. They get back to the scene of the crime to find Sutton
cleaning up. They hear a baby and Sutton sees that it is in the back of his patrol car. Dwight
picks her up and Whitehead says that she is wrapped up with the same sheet inside. They get
inside the station and they feel that the wife of Sam killed Sam because he had an affair with
the young woman. Greenback says Sam got a check from Peter Branson every month and then
Sam wrote a check to someone else in the same amount. Sutton comes in with the baby and
tells that Social Services are not in. Lt. Rice grabs the crying baby and sings what she wants the
Detectives to do. She tells Sutton to play Nanny until Social Services are in.
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Greenback has Peter Branson come into the station and asks why Sam was getting checks
from him. He says that Sam was helping him and his wife adopt a child because they can’t have
kids and the State won'’t let him adopt because he is a former felon. Greenback tells that Sam
is dead and Peter asks about the baby. Greenback is interested on how he knew about the baby
and Peter says that he didn’t kill Sam because Sam was helping him get a baby. Whitehead says
that Sam’s wife was on a cruise and didn’t know anything about it. They realize none of the
other residents have no clue who the woman was. However, Dwight sees a homless woman on
the street. Dwight asks if she has seen a pregnant or have a new baby. She tells that a young
girl was nice and gave her a 'God’s Path’ shirt. Dwight gives the cookies that Whitehead got from
the residents. They go to 'God’s Path’, a half-way house for women. They talk with the nuns
there and they tell that they have no information. Dwight realizes that one of the nuns is not
maintaining eye contact and Dwight tells that theyre going to have to take them all in. Sister
Catherine speaks up and tells that she is the baby’s mother. They take her down to the station
and Lt. Rice tells that she can’t believe that they are talking to a nun about this.

Dwight walks into the room and asks about the baby being in the back of the Police car and
she tells that she had the baby at the apartment and Sam was helping her. However, after she
was recovering, a person banged on the door. Sam told her to take the baby and run. Dwight asks
who the baby’s father is and she tells that she can’t tell him that. Dwight tells that he doesn’t
believe a word she is saying. Meanwhile, Sutton is watching the baby and has her on the copy
machine. Greenback tries to make copies and Sutton tells that he can’t move the baby because
she will start yelling. Dwight’s mother comes in and tells Sutton that he did a good job and says
that the baby is asleep. Whitehead says that Sister Catherine’s story checks out and says that
the nurse told him that the father of the baby is tall, but that is all she could tell. He says that
they told him that Sister Catherine used the name Christie. Lt. Rice comes out and asks where
they are. Whitehead says that since illegal adoption was the thing, the father probably wanted a
bigger cut.

Dwight and Whitehead are on stakeout and see Sister Catherine comes out and is stopped
by a man. Dwight runs up and the man runs off and drives off. They question Sister Catherine
and she tells that it is her father, Harlan Thomas, was who was trying to attack her. She tells
that Harlan was the one who was going to get a $25,000 finders fee. Sam called Harlan that the
deal was off and that Harlan was the one who killed Sam. Dwight asks why she didn’t tell them
before and she tells that she didn’'t want to believe that he could kill someone. Whitehead and
Dwight get back to the station and tell Lt. Rice the update. Whitehead pours what he thinks is
water only to find milk in the jug. Sutton comes in and tells that the milk is for the baby. Lt. Rice
goes through Sister Catherine’s bag and finds car keys. Lt. Rice tells them to find the car to find
the baby’s father. Dwight and Whitehead manage to find the car and find that the father of the
baby is Damon. They tell that they have Sister Catherine. The father of Damon says that Christie
is not a nun. He shows a picture of her and Dwight says that Sister Catherine is not the baby’s
mother, she is her aunt.

They get back to the station and Lt. Rice is not happy with the update. Dwight goes into find
Sutton and his mother practicing putting on diapers on cans and tells that he needs to borrow
the baby. Sutton asks when Dwight is going to settle down and have children. He tells them
not to worry about it and walks into the interview room with the baby. Sister Catherine lights
up and tells that he has had enough of her lying. She tells that her sister Christie and Damon
are fine. She agrees to give him the address. He takes the baby and sings her to sleep. Sister
Catherine tells that her father used to be good, until Christie’s mother died. Greenback tells that
apparently Harlan has a debt of $25,000 that he has to pay to a bookie. Sutton comes by and
Greenback tells Sutton has spit-up on his back, but Sutton doesn’t care. They get a call that tells
that they have a location of Harlan’s car. It is right outside the station. Dwight goes out and tells
the person in the car to get out. It is Damon, the baby’s father. He tells that Harlan has Christie
and he says that he has to get the baby.

They go to the hotel and see that Harlan is holding Christie inside with a shotgun. Lt. Rice
tells Sister Catherine that she needs to talk to her father because she can reach him better than
they can. Social Services come by to pick up the baby. Paula Anne goes into see Sutton with the
baby and tells that the Social Services have come. He says that babies are so cute and that it
was a nice time spending time and taking care of one. They say goodbye to the baby. Back at the
hotel, Sister Catherine talks to her father and manages to get him out of the hotel and Christie
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is saved. They hug and the father is escorted off to prison while Christie and Sister Catherine
hug. Later, Sister Catherine comes in with cookies for the station and tells that the baby is under
Damon’s father’s custody until they decide what they want to do. Dwight tells Whitehead that if

Sutton asks, they named the baby Pereira. Whitehead agrees only if Dwight gives up his half of
the cookies.
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The Things We Carry

Season 2
Episode Number: 15
Season Episode: 5

e )
Originally aired: Tuesday July 12, 2011
Writer: Blair Singer
Director: Randall Zisk
Show Stars: Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Sam Hennings, DJ Qualls (Davey Sut-

ton), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks), Leonard Earl Howze (Regi-
nald Greenback), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice)

Guest Stars: Chelsea Field (Megan Hargrove), Michael Paré (Dave Hargrove), Red
West (Tim Mason), Lesley Ann Brandt (Adriana), Leanne Cochran
(Mystic), Judd Lormand (Neil DeKay), Elizabeth Rose Young (Detec-
tive), Doug Olear (Ernie Matson), Gregory Allen Gabroy (Bar Pa-
tron), Dave Davis (Bryan), Nicholas Sean Gomez (Harry V), John
Neisler (Hilliard Sherman), Carl Palmer (Clark Matheson), Jack Ra-
dosta (Jackson Green), Jeff Riddick (Patrolman)

Summary: Lt. Rice & detective Whitehead work together to investigate the acci-
dental blaze/arson of a beloved and historic Memphis movie theater.
Dwight and Paula Ann travel to New Orleans to attend the hearing-
for-early-release (citing medical reasons) of the man who is serving
a life sentence after having been convicted of being Dwight’s father’s
murderer.

The scene opens with Dwight playing the
guitar and watching Lt. Rice meeting with
someone. Whitehead says that there was
a fire at the movie theater. Lt. Rice asks
to talk to Dwight and says that it will
only take a minute. Dwight meets Spe-
cial Prosecutor Hillyard Sherman from
the U.S. Attorney’s office. He tells that
Tim Mason is getting offered pardon from
being insane when he killed his father
and says that Dwight and Paula Anne
have to sign off on it. Meanwhile, White-
head meets with the Fire Chief and he
says that they found a Gothic Lamp as
the source of the fire and that they picked
up a kid named Bryan who was hit on the head. However, the kid remembered that he had Pot
Brownies’ in his car and ate them all up before the cops could see. Whitehead says that he is
going to have to wait until Bryan is off his Chocolate High. Back at the station, Dwight is looking
at the form that Sherman gave him and tells Lt. Rice that he is going to talk to Mason himself.
She says that she isn’t going to fight him.

Back at the movie theater, Whitehead talks to the owners and asks about Bryan’s behavior.
The Fire Chief comes out and shows the burnt remains of a film. The wife of the owner says that
those were Elvis’s early films and that is tragic that they were destroyed. Lt. Rice pulls up and
tells that Dwight needed a few days off and she is going to be with Whitehead. He asks if she is
taking over and she tells that she isn’t. She tells that Whitehead is in charge this time around. He
walks away confident and Rice rolls her eyes. Meanwhile, Dwight packs and Paula Anne comes
in. She tells that they can send in the forms. He says that he is going and Paula Anne says that
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she is going with her. Sutton has a box and it is full of Bondage toys. Whitehead and Lt. Rice
think that Bryan was supplying Ecstasy to kids during RAVE parties. Whitehead tells Lt. Rice
to interview Bryan when he comes off his high. Sutton is shocked that Whitehead gave Lt. Rice
orders and she tells that Whitehead is running the investigation this time.

On the road, Dwight asks why she is quiet and she tells that Dwight’s father’s case was taken
care of and complains about Dwight’s driving fast. Dwight tells that there was missing minutes
on the day that his father was shot when the witness couldn’t see his father and Mason. He
wants to know what happened. She tries to tell that there were no missing minutes and Dwight
doesn’t care. A little later, Dwight gets pulled over and Paula Anne gets him out of it by flirting
with the cop. Whitehead talks to Bryan and asks why he was unconscious outside the theater.
He says that he doesn’t know why. Whitehead shows the pacifier they found and says that Bryan
was hosting RAVE parties. However, Bryan says that Dave, the owner, and his wife were and they
were adult sex parties. Whitehead says that he is going to talk to Dave. Paula Anne stretches and
tries to convince Dwight to go back to Memphis and forget about Angola. Dwight shows the wad
of cut money. He says that only dirty cops have cut money and needs to know what it is about.

Back at the theater, Whitehead and Lt. Rice talk to Dave and he tells that he never hosted
the sex parties and that a couple named Mystic Harry V, are the hosts. Lt. Rice thinks that Dave
wanted to go for insurance fraud and Dave says that his insurance lapsed and that he has no
insurance on the theater. Whitehead and Lt. Rice go to their shop and tell that they have the
keys and have access. Harry V and Mystic tell that they were at a party last night and Whitehead
demands a list. After threatening prison, Whitehead gets the list. Dwight and Paula Anne get to
the prison and Mason apologizes for killing Dwight’s father. He says that God’s found him. Paula
Anne gets emotional and tells Dwight that she can wait in the car. Neil Decay, one of the members
of the sex club, is brought in and Whitehead tells that Rice can take this one. Dwight sits down
with Mason and tells him to talk. Back at the station, Decay tells that he had an argument about
how he saw his girlfriend come out of Dave’s office and he told him that he was showing her
Elvis prints that he had. He says that he never burnt down the place and tells them to look at
the skinny guy that was yelling about the same prints and saying things like, ’It’s not about the
money’.

Back at the prison, Mason tells that he was a different man back then and he says that he did
unspeakable things. Dwight asks about the Mafia truck that Mason got things off of and shows
the dirty money. He says that he doesn’t know anything about it. Dwight tells that he is the one
standing in the way of his freedom and Mason still says that he doesn’t know and Dwight says
that he knows that his father was on the Take, but says that he knows that he wanted to get
out of it. Dwight tells Mason that he can rot in prison. Dwight calls Whitehead and tells that he
needs a favor and asks who Mason’s cellmate was in prison. Paula Anne asks if they can go home
and Dwight says not yet. She tells that solving the case is not going to bring his father back. He
says that he still needs to know. Back at the station, Sutton tells Whitehead and Lt. Rice that
the Elvis movies were worth 50,000 a piece. Lt. Rice tells that she found out that Dave had an
insurance policy on the movies. Back in Angola, Dwight talks to Mason’s old cellmate and he
tells that he doesn’t remember because he only told what other people told him. Dwight walks
the streets walks into a bar and meets with Rihanna, an old friend. He walks in a room later to
find her almost naked on the bed.

The next day, Dwight wakes up next to Rihanna and she asks what he is going to do about
Mason. He says that he doesn’t know. Whitehead talks to Dave and tells that the fire was caused
by him. Dave says that he and his wife would never burn down the theater. However, when he
gets choked up, he admits that it was him. However, Whitehead can tell that he is lying. They go
to the Memorabilia shop and wait outside for Ernie Madsen, a guy who was on a chat site saying
that he is going to cash in on a score. Ernie pulls up and Whitehead tells the girl in the car to
take a walk and gets the keys. They open the trunk and find the Elvis movies. Ernie comes out
and says that he bought them from Meagan, Dave’s wife, fair and square. Whitehead suspects
that Megan snuck out while Dave was sleeping. Meanwhile, Dwight goes to a restaurant and
asks why Paula Anne isn’t ready to go. She tells that she isn’t going to the Parole Board meeting
because she knew that Dwight’s father was on the Take. Back at the station, Whitehead shows
Megan the signed confession for assault and arson from Dave. He says that she doesn’t have to
let him take the blame.

Dwight speaks at the hearing and says that his father was the best father anyone could
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ever have. He says that Paula Anne and him are not going to stand in the way of Mason’s
release. Dwight walks out of the prison and throws away the cut money. Later, Lt. Rice goes
up to Whitehead and says that he did good. Lt. Rice says that the case was a test for her and
Whitehead tells that she did a good job too. The episode ends with Dwight and Rihanna singing
together 'Knock On Wood'.
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Troubled Waters

Season 2
Episode Number: 16
Season Episode: 6

e )
Originally aired: Tuesday July 19, 2011
Writer: Matt Payne
Director: Greg Beeman
Show Stars: Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Sam Hennings (Charlie White), DJ

Qualls (Davey Sutton), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks), Leonard
Earl Howze (Reginald Greenback), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice)

Guest Stars: Jonathan Adams (Detective Moran), Jessica Collins (Margo), Vincent
Ventresca (Jimmy Wagner), Leslie Uggams (Estelle), Scott Jefferson
(Winston), Casey McMurray (Singer), Brian Oerly (Darien Denman),
Tony Senzamici (Mills Ryan)

Summary: Paula calls on Dwight to help one of his oldest friends, who has been
arrested in a case involving three gunmen who robbed a party boat.
Dwight’s investigation brings him face to face with an old flame and
gives him a chance to perform with one of his old band members from
his high school days.

The scene opens with Dwight and Paula
Anne looking at the flower shop and
Paula Anne tells that Jimmy Wagner, a
friend of Dwight’s a while ago, was ar-
rested. She says that she promised his
mother that Dwight would look into it. He
says that despite having a band together,
he and Jimmy are not really friends any-
more and haven't been for 15 years.
She asks him again and he agrees. A
woman walks into the station and every-
one avoids her. She is Lt. Rice’s mother
and she tells that Lt. Rice had her driver’s
license test revoked and that she knows

— that Rice had something to do with it and
says that she will not stop driving. Sutton asks Rice if she really asked someone at the DMV. She
tells him that it had to be done.

Dwight and Whitehead go to the scene of the crime in which Jimmy was accused of robbing.
Detective Merrand comes by and tells them that three men robbed a boat with guns. Dwight asks
why they picked up Jimmy. Merrand tells that they found three wetsuits in Jimmy’s boat shop
after searching for boat shops around the area. Whitehead says that is not enough, but Jimmy
asked for a lawyer right away. Dwight says that armed robbery doesn'’t fit Jimmy’s character and
Whitehead says that 15 years is a long time for people to change. Dwight goes to the Precinct
and finds Jimmy. He tells Dwight that he doesn’t need his help and tells him that he will tell
him mom that Dwight tried his best. He goes outside and tells Whitehead that Jimmy turned
down his help. Whitehead asks what got him into this behavior. Dwight tells that Jimmy stole
his girlfriend years ago. Whitehead asks if the girl is blonde hair, blue eyed. He says that she was
and then turns around to find Margo, the old girlfriend and Jimmy’s wife. She tells that Jimmy
needs Dwight’s help and he says that he will see what he can do.

They get back to the station and Dwight says that he can’t believe that he got sucked into this
and Whitehead says that he is 'that guy’ where everyone goes to. Dwight asks Sutton to get all
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the information on Jimmy off the books. Sutton likes the fact that they are going under the radar
with this. Whitehead asks Dwight for $20. Dwight gives him $10 and a couple of dollar bills.
Whitehead says that proves his point that Dwight is 'that guy’. Later, Lt. Rice drives by to find
her mother on the side of the road. She is being escorted into a police car and she sees that her
mother crashed in a car. She goes over and her mother blames her for destroying her confidence.
She tells that she shouldn’t be driving and she tells that she is trying to put her into prison.
Dwight and Whitehead go to the owner of the boat that was robbed. The man has a watch that
was reported stolen. He says that he had to get it back and so he put a word out to some fences
to track it down. Later, Sutton finds Winston Spady, the owner of a salvage yard. Sutton asks
if Whitehead thinks that Jimmy is guilty and he says that anyone who steals another friend’s
girlfriend is bound to be a criminal.

Dwight and Whitehead go to the salvage yard and meet Winston. He says that he doesn’t have
any pocket watches and tells that he never sold one. However, when Whitehead tells that he
will drag him to prison, he tells that 3 men came in looking to sell things. Whitehead tells that
Winston is going to give descriptions to a sketch artist. Dwight goes back to the Precinct and
tells that he got Jimmy’s bail reduced and Jimmy’s mother is posting it. He thanks Dwight for
the help. Dwight asks about the men in the pictures and he says that he doesn’t know them.
Dwight tells that he will talk to him later at Jimmy’s shop. Meanwhile, Whitehead is talking to
Rice’s mother and she asks why he is. Whitehead tells that Rice has to pick her mother up from
the Beauty Parlor in an hour. Rice tells that Whitehead needs to stay out of her business. Dwight
goes to Jimmy’s shop and he tells that he had his music on the night that the three men came
by and he didn’t hear them at all. They walk on the dock and Jimmy tells Dwight that he had
the gate open the night they came by because he was waiting for Margo. He tells Dwight that he
and Paula Anne need to go get a drink with him and Margo. He says that when the case is over
then he will, but he presses. Dwight says that he will see. Jimmy sees something in the water
and pulls it out. It is a bumper of a jet-ski.

Dwight comes into the station and tells Sutton to find out the details of the jet-ski part. Lt.
Rice calls Dwight into her office and says that Detective Marrand has said that Dwight walked
into his case. She tells that Dwight is to turn over all evidence. Marrand says that he got the
bail reduced and he leaves. Rice tells that she is not going to tell him to keep out of it. Later
that night, Paula Anne and Dwight meet Jimmy and Margo for drinks and the band says that
Dwight should come and sing. Dwight has Jimmy join him on stage and they sing 'Ring of Fire’.
The next day, Dwight is feeling his hangover and Whitehead tells that they have nothing on the
mug shots. Whitehead asks if Dwight would have made it as a singer and Dwight says that he
can only sing covers and that is it. Meanwhile, Sutton visits another owner of a boat shop and
he tells him that he doesn’t know any of the men in the pictures and tells that he doesn’t want to
talk. Sutton says that he can take him in on unpaid parking tickets. He agrees to look at them
again.

Lt. Rice gives her mother the schedule of her appointments and she tells that she is rushing
her. She tells that her life was easier until she started messing with. She gets upset and tells that
she can figure it out herself. Meanwhile, Sutton asks Whitehead and says that he is looking for
Dwight and says that he has information on Dwight’s friend and it is not good. Whitehead tells
that Dwight can take the news. Sutton tells Dwight that the spoiler that they found was brand
new. Margo is brought in and tells that they need to know where Jimmy is and she tells that
she doesn’t know where he is, but puts a list together of members of the band. Margo says that
Jimmy joined a couple of months ago. Dwight realizes that Jimmy lied about being rusty on the
guitar too. Dwight has Sutton look up calls on Monday. He brings up a number and Lt. Rice’s
mother calls and she doesn’t want to talk to her. Dwight gets to the location and a man is spotted
that tried to sell the stolen goods. He manages to get off on a motorcycle. Marrand finds Jimmy’s
hat covered in blood.

Dwight goes into the office and she asks if Jimmy is going to be alright. He doesn’t know.
Jimmy calls Dwight and tells him to back off or they are going to kill him. Dwight plays the
phone call and they hear a whistle. Sutton says that Jacob Hill is the man that got away. Sutton
says that it is a horn that is blown when a bridge is being raised. The SWAT team gets on scene
at a factory and bust inside. They shoot and Hill goes in a room. Dwight sees him trying to choke
and kill Jimmy. Dwight shoots Hill and Jimmy is safe. Meanwhile, Lt. Rice gives her mother new
glasses and says that she needs to retake the driving test again and get her license. Back at the
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factory, Marrand is glad that Dwight’s friend is alright and Dwight tells Jimmy that he shouldn’t
have went back to the men and he says that he thought that he could have gotten them out of
the hole they were in. The episode ends with Whitehead telling Dwight that he saved Jimmy from
doing something worse.
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Body of Evidence

Season 2
Episode Number: 17
Season Episode: 7

4 N\
Originally aired: = Tuesday July 26, 2011
Writer: Jonathan I. Kidd, Sonya Winton
Director: John Showalter
Show Stars: Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Sam Hennings, DJ Qualls (Davey Sut-

ton), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks), Leonard Earl Howze (Regi-
nald Greenback), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice)

Guest Stars: Garret Dillahunt (Tim Wayne), Geoffrey Blake (Chet Mayland), Bug
Hall (Matt Harris), Keb’ Mo’ (music teacher), Tequan Richmond (Jesse),
Adella Gauthier (Grace), Dana Gourrier (Shawna), Indigo (Devon), Lyn-
dsay Kimball (Kat Melvin), Chris Marroy (Martin), Caleb Michaelson
(Ben), Ron Flagge (Minister), Deneen Tyler (June Watts)

Production Code: 207

Summary: The body of a highly regarded man who was known for helping at
risk children goes missing during his funeral. Dwight and Whitehead
scramble to find the body, yet a very different picture of the supposed
model citizen soon begins to take shape.

L ' e Dwight and Whitehead scramble to track

F down a corpse, and learn something trou-
E BENE ER @ bling about the late man’s past.
u ot The death of a local basketball hero
& CHE U.S.” had Dwight and Whitehead on the hunt
Bnpolitical voice. for his body when it goes missing at his
funeral. It turns out that his body con-
tained the key to a locker where drug-
filled sneakers were being held. Brad was
trying to enrich the life of underprivileged
children in the Memphis projects in any
way he could, including financially, the
means of which weren’t entirely legal.
Paula Ann attempts to put together
the annual benevolence fundraiser, assigning tasks to the members of the MPD. When met with
opposition from her own son, Davy, set on a higher profile position than ticket sales, strikes a
deal with Paula Ann to get Dwight to sing.
The episode ends with Dwight on-stage at the benefit singing a cover of T1l Take You There.’
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Identity Crisis

Season 2

Episode Number: 18
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Tuesday August 2, 2011

Writer: Jim Adler
Director: Aaron Lipstadt
Show Stars: Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Sam Hennings (Charlie 'Whitehead’

White), DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks),
Leonard Earl Howze (Reginald Greenback), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya

Rice)

Guest Stars: Brad William Henke (Mark), Lauren German (Kaylee), Jennifer Marsala
(Allie Thomas), Daniel Hugh Kelly (Tony Bellow), Kelly Lynch (Marie
Manetti)

Summary: A man who has taken hostages at a bank quickly gives himself up

claiming the bank has stolen his identity and taken all of his money.
Dwight investigates and discovers the identity theft goes a lot deeper.

67

Dwight and Whitehead investigate a case
of identity fraud where the culprits im-
personate officers of the law to lure peo-
ple into giving them their private infor-
mation. They find that a mother and son
team are responsible and set out to find
them before the son harms anyone.

Dwight dealt with his mother’s broken
engagement, only to find out her former
fiancé was accused of embezzlement in
another state.

Davey sought to impress the associate
from the bank charged with helping the
MPD out with the case.
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Ten Little Memphians

Season 2
Episode Number: 19
Season Episode: 9

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Tuesday August 9, 2011

Bill Chais, Blair Singer

Anton Cropper

Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Sam Hennings (Charlie 'Whitehead’
White), DJ Qualls (Davey Sutton), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks),
Leonard Earl Howze (Reginald Greenback), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya
Rice)

Gail O’Grady (Chloe), Andre Royo (Ronnie (Joe)), Aja Evans (Guest
Star), Nicholas Gonzalez (Dominic), Graham Norris (Jeremy)

There’s a storm brewing in Memphis, and Dwight and Whitehead are
off visiting a haughty Southern family from Whitehead’s past. When
the storm worsens, the pair become trapped in a mansion during a
murder investigation that is straight out of a 'who done it" mystery
novel. Meanwhile, back at M.P.D, Lt. Rice, Davey and Greenback have
to help identify a man they found in jail with no clue how he got there.

A storm rolls into Memphis, causing the
city to go into evacuation mode and the
MPD to take on some tough cases in the
midst of the chaos.

Dwight and Whitehead head to the
reading of the will of someone White-
head knew as a child, as we come to find
out, Whitehead’s mom was the maid at
the Archer mansion. While there, the duo
must solve the murder of Virgil Archer’s
son, weeding the killer out of dysfunc-
tional family.

At the precinct, those who stayed be-
hind as emergency responders, mainly Lt.
Rice, Sutton and Greenback, have to fig-

ure out the identity of a man in lockup who can’t remember who he is or how he arrived at the

MPD.
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The Feud

Season 2
Episode Number: 20
Season Episode: 10

( )
Originally aired: = Tuesday August 16, 2011
Writer: Jan Nash
Director: Michael Katleman
Show Stars: Jason Lee (Dwight Hendricks), Sam Hennings, DJ Qualls (Davey Sut-

ton), Celia Weston (Paula Ann Hendricks), Leonard Earl Howze (Regi-
nald Greenback), Alfre Woodard (Lt. Tanya Rice)

Guest Stars: Lance Henriksen (Tom Harrison), Amy Madigan (Kate Murphy), Lau-
ren German (Kaylee), Jordan Masterson (Pete Harrison), Emily Mon-
tague (Ella Murphy), Clarke Peters (Fred), Gabe Begneaud (Bartender),
Kesha Bullard (Rachel), Kim Collins (Randy), Lyman Chen (EMT), Os-
car Gale (Guard), Will Rothhaar (Dean Harrison), Rob Steinberg (Glen

Layendecker)
Production Code: 210
Sumimary: A family feud and the 7th Precinct finding out of Dwight’'s new girl-

friend ends season 2. The family feud comes to light with the shooting
of a girl on the business streets of Memphis.

Dwight and Whitehead investigate the
makings of a family feud when the daugh-
ter of a crime family is shot in broad
daylight. The plot thickened when it be-
comes clear that the daughter and a son
of another crime family appeared a mod-
ern day Romeo and Juliet, a relationship
which threatened the rival family’s busi-
ness.
{ Whitehead and Davey attempt to plan
7% Py a sgrprise party for. DV\{ight. They atterppt
e & to invite his new girlfriend, Caley, which
ecomes the hint that Dwight’s friends are planning something.

b
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Actor Appearances

A 0108 (Miranda)
Felder Charbonnet..............coiiiiiiiiiinennanan.. 3
Jonathan Adams............coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiannnnn.. 1 0201 (Officer Jacobs); 0202 (Officer Jacobs); 0203
0206 (Detective Moran) (Officer Jacobs)
AlIX ANGELIS . . ..o 2 Lyman Chen............ooooiii 1
0102 (Miss Southern Pearl); 0103 (Miss Southern 0210 (EMT)
Pearl) EdwarddJ. Clare..............ooiiiiiiiiiiiiie i 1
Jillian Armenante...............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiai.. 1 0203 (Forensics Officer J. Stall)
0204 (Delores) Christian Clemenson ....................cooiiiiiia.. 2
Randy Austin..........cocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaenen, 1 0102 (Jim Masterson); 0103 (Jim Masterson)
0105 (Benny) Benjamin C. Clement......................oooia.., 1
0103 (Lawyer)
B Leanne CoChran.........oovviieiiinininiennenennennnnns 1
0205 (Mystic)
Jessica Collins ....ovvuvneiin i 1
Dennis Bagneris ................ooooiinnnn 1 0206 (Margo)
0202 (shady crook) Kim COLNS . oo vttt ettt 1
Samuel Ball ... 1 0210 (Randy)
0106 (Randi Perkins) Mildred COVETt .....vvveitee et 1
Gabe Begneaud .........cociiiiiiiiiiiii i 1 0101 (Dottie Collins)
0210 (Bartender) Caithin CUSEET ... .vviittitiie et 2
T.J. BellOW JT. .ot ce e 1 0102 (Kate Caldwell); 0103 (Kate Caldwell)
0110 (Dee-Dee Cooper)
Christopher Berry.........c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininen... 1 D
0201 (Travis)
Veronica Berry ... 1 .
0202 (AlliSOl’l Forrest) Dave Davis .. ... e 1
Geoffrey BlaKe........oovuiiiniiiiiiieiiie i, 1 0205 (Bryan)
0207 (Chet Mayland) MiKO DEFOOT . ..ottt et 2
DiSKO BlazZe.....vvviiiiiiie i 1 0102 (Bobby Tyme); 0103 (Bobby Tyme)
0101 (J&L Perp] Garret Dillahunt ...t 1
ROD BOII ... ..o 1 _ 0207 (Tim Wayne)
0102 (Cyril Houston) Julie ANN Doan .......oviiii i 1
Lesley Ann Brandt ..ot 1 0202 (Rehabilitation Counselor)
0205 (Adriana) Donna DuPlantier. ... 2
Beau BraSS0. .. .ovvuiiieiiie ettt 4 0105 (Gloria the M.E.); 0110 (Gloria the M.E.)
0106 (Officer meyers); 0107 (Officer Meyers); 0108
(S.W.AT.); 0202 (Officer Meyers) E
Lyle Brocato.......oouovuiniininiiiii i 1
0108 (Jeff McManus) AJAEVANS . ..ottt 1
KeshaBullard...........cooiiiiiiiiii i 1 0209 (Guest Star]
. 0210 (.Rachel) Harold EVans. .......c.ouiiiiiit i iieiianeanannns 1
Michael Relll}{ Burke............ SCERRELETIEPPERPPRRRPRED 1 0102 (George)
,0202 (Miles Ahomana / Miles Hart) JA EVEIMOTE. . ..ttt 1
Cedric BUurton .......oviiiiiii it 1 0105 (Leonard)
0101 (Police Officer)
C F
Chelsea Field........c.coiiiiiiiiii it 1
Jeanne Caldarera...............oovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiin., 1 0205 (Megan Hargrove)
0202 (Rich person #2) RON FIABEe. ...ttt 1
AIlgel Campbell .......................................... 1 0207 (Mlnlster)
0101 (Tamara Sully)
Vince Canlas .....o.viiviiiiiii it 1
0101 (Asian Elvis #5) G
Mindy Caraccioli............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiian. 1
0103 (News reporter (uncredited)) Gregory Allen Gabroy.........c.coeviiiiiiiininiinenen 1

Veronica Cartwright...................oiiiiiiiiiiin, 1 0205 (Bar Patron)
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Amber Gaiennie.............ooiiiiiiiiiiiii i 2 Lyndsay Kimball ...,
0108 (Bridesmaid); 0109 (Bridesmaid) 0207 (Kat Melvin)
Oscar Gale.....o.iiiiii it 1 Mike Kimmel ...
0210 (Guard) 0104 (Brice Cutter)
Beau Garrett..............cooiiii 2 EriK King .. ...oouiiii i
0201 (Claire Ryan); 0202 (Claire Ryan) 0106 (Wendell "Honey-boy” Taylor)
Jim Garrity ... 1 Garrett S. Kruithof................oo o
0102 (Mr. Hatcher) 0201 (Victor)
Adella Gauthier ..............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiin i 1 Dylan KuSSmMan .. .....o.uveuneieinneiieeaeennenneennen.
0207 (Grace) 0101 (TJ Williams)
Lauren German ...........oeeevevueneenennenenennenennns 2
0208 (Kaylee); 0210 (Kaylee) L
Connor GIbDS . ..ovveii e 1
0201 (Jack EKler)
Geraldine Glenmn.............c.ooiiiiiiiiiraneeanannnns 1 Leon Lamar..............oooiiii
0104 (Detective (uncredited)) 0101 (Morris Tisdale)
Nicholas Sean GOMEZ. . ... on e 1 Robert Larriviere . ......o.ovuv i iiiieananns
0205 (Harry V) 0202 (bitter man)
Nicholas Gonzalez.............oviiiiiiiiniieieninennnnnn. 1 Mayra Leal.............oooo
0209 (Dominic) 0109 (Juana)
KEIli GOSS . . v vvvveeeee et 2 Jerry Leggio ...
0102 (Jess Hatcher); 0103 (Jess Hatcher) 0110 (Dr. Thomas Burke)
DT 0o =T €101 51y (< o 1 Thomas Lennon. ...,
0207 (Shawna) 0202 (Keith Grant)
Rhoda GLiffiS . . oo oo, 2 Juliette LewiS. . ...ouiuiii i
0102 (Mrs. Hatcher); 0103 (Mrs. Hatcher) 0102 (Cleo)
Michael Litl....oneniiiii et
H 0101 (Asian Elvis #4)
Ernie Lively............oooiiiiiiii
Russell M. Ha€USer .......ovvniiiiiii i 1 0105 (Doc Boswell)
X JuddLormand ...
0103 (Biker Bar Patron) 0205 (Neil DeKay)
y.
BugHall........oooii 1 KLY LYACH . o+ e evveo oo
0207 (Matt Harris) 0208 (Marie Manetti)
Brad William Henke................cooiiiiiiiiiniinn., 1
0208 (Mark)
Lance HenriKsen .........cooviiiiiiiiini i, 1 M
0210 (Tom Harrison)
BrentHenry............ooooiiiiiiiii 1 SUNNY MaDIEY .. ... vvii ettt
0106 (Phil Jorgensen) 0102 (Alex); 0103 (Alex); 0104 (Alex)
Al HillIS .o oove e 2 AMY Madigan. . ..........oooueieieii i
0201 (Stacy Ekler); 0202 (Stacy Ekler) 0210 (Kate Murphy)
Brandon Hirsch..............cooooiiiiiiiin 1 Karl MaKineD . . .o vnoee e e
0102 (Raleigh Flank) 0106 (Jerry "Bug” Bugner)
Kayla Mae Maloney ...........coouviiiiiiniininnininnenn.
| 0109 (Hilary Orland)
03515 5191 E=T s (0 ) 2NN
INAIZO . ...ooii 1 0207 (Martin)
0207 (Devon) Jennifer Marsala.................ooooiiin
0208 (Allie Thomas)
J Scott A. Martin........ooovviiiiiiii i
0201 (Richard Turner)
Jordan Masterson........c.vuviiiiiiiiniaenneannnns
Scott J effersop ........................................... 1 0210 (Pete Harrison)
0206 (Winston) YuKi MatsuzaKi.....o.ouiiiiiniiii i iinneanns
Marco St. John...... LR L PP L PR L PP PL P PR PRERPPREPY 1 0101 (Yoshi Yakamura)
.0108 (Mayor Brian) John Calvin McCanmn ..........c.ouiiiininrineeneneennnn..
Jollaine...... SRR R R T L T P L PP L P PR P PLPPREPPREPPRED 1 0102 (B-Boy 1)
0102 (Kitty) Heather McComb ........o.viiiiiiiiiii i
John Joly .. RERERERTEEeT B LR TP TERRERTE: 2 0203 (Lisa)
0102 (Bic); 0103 (Bic) Jake MCDOIMIAN .. oovtteei e eeieieeieeeneanannns
Arthuorf(l)olsg)tl;l. R L T P L PP E PR PP PRPRRPREPPERY 1 0202 (Shane Vereen)
. onnis Canu) Casey MCMUTITAY .. .ooviiiiiiiii it
Ericdungmann................ooiiiiiiii i 1 :
0201 (Joey Ekler) 0206 (Singer)
Micaiah McZeal .........c.oviiiiii i iiananns
0110 (Bella)
K Caleb MichaelSomn ......oovvviiininiieieiiinienenanans
0207 (Ben)
Daniel Hugh Kelly. ...t 5 Tracy Miller........ooooiiiiiiiiii i
0101 (Tony Bellew); 0102 (Tony Bellew); 0107 (Tony 0105 (Frank Dixon)
Bellew); 0110 (Tony Bellew); 0208 (Tony Bel- Cary Y. Mizobe .......oooiiiiiiiiiiii i
low) 0101 (Asian Elvis #2)
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KED' MO+ 1 S
0207 (music teacher)
Emily Montague. ... 1 Kristin Samuelson .......oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiienennnn 1
0210 (Ella Murphy) 0202 (Rich person #1)
Darcel White Moreno ....................ooinn, 1 SHETTi SAUIM . ..ottt ittt iie e eeaanns 1
0101 (Sabine Basquie) 0105 (Melinda Conner)
Andrew Sensenig...........oooviiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
N 0107 (Tyler Oney)
Tony SenzamicCi ............oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 1
h il 0206 (Mills Ryan)
John Nel; er 11 : d h """"""""""""""""""" 1 NiCKI SiXtEeN ..ttt ei e 1
020 ng iard Sherman) 0106 (Street Hustler (uncredited))
Lance E. Nichols .. SRR R LR LR PR P PR PR PREPELS 1 James Aaron Smith . . . ..o 1
0203 (Hank Miller) 0109 (Colin Daly)
Melody Noel .. R L L T L T PP L PP LR PR PRLPRLR 1 Richard SPeight JT. ... ...vv.eeeeeese e 1
0203 (Uniformed Female Cop) 0107 (Donald)
Graham NOITIS .....oviiiiiii i 1 GIregory SPOTIEder . ... eve e 1
0209 (Jeremy) 0202 (Jeffrey Gibbs)
Christine Standfill ............. ..., 1
O 0103 (Mrs. J.C. Lightfoot)
Christopher Stanley..............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin, 1
Gall O'Grady. . ... vvvniieeiie et 1 0191 (Patrick Collins a.k.a Ray Pruitt)
0209 (Chloe) Rob Steinberg ..o 1
. ¢ 0210 (Glen Layendecker)
Brian Oerly.......c.viuiiiiiiiiii it 1
0206 (Darien D ) Tonea Stewart.........ocvvuiii it 1
arien benmarn 0110 (Miss Angelin)
Doug Olear.........covuiiniiiiiiiiiiii i 1 .
0205 (Ernie Matson) Jennie Stumpf. ... ... 1
rrie Matson 0102 (Ivy Hatcher)
Carol Sutton........c.oviiiiiii e 1
P 0110 (Ruby Cooper)
Lauren SWiNnNey...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnn, 1
Carl Palimer. .. ..ottt 1 0202, (elderly woman)
0205 (Clark Matheson] Margo Swisher........ R SRR AR 2
Danielle PanabaKer . .......oeuuuueee et 1 0101 (Female Uniform); 0107 (Female Cop)
0204 (Sister Catherine) Lawrence Syklfmon LT T T L PE PR PREPPEPEPERPREPRES 1
Tina ParKer. ... .. ..ot 1 0101 (Asian Elvis #6)
0105 (Sadie Boswell)
Michael Paré...........cooiviiiiiiiiiiii it 1 T
0205 (Dave Hargrove)
Liann Pattison...................ooooon 1 Sandra ThIgPeN ..........ooeie i, 1
0202 (Mrs. Vereen) 0108 (Shirley)
Clarke Peters..........c.oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin . 1 JACKIE TONTY « o oo oo e 1
0210 (Fred) 0105 (Delilah Boswell)
Drew Powell ....... SRR L TP E P L PR PP L PEPRPRRPRLY 1 Tamlyn TOMta . .........oeentiiieii i, 1
0201 (Clay Williams) 0110 (Noreen Drake)
Deneen Tyler........c.ooiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaenn 1
R 0207 (June Watts)
Jack Radosta........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie i 1 U
0205 (Jackson Green)
Paul Rae........oiiiiii it 1 Leslie Uggams..........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1
0104 (Lewis 'Red’ Jones) 0206 (Estelle)
Joseph Rene. ... 1
0102 (Marine) V
Giovanni Ribisi.......ccooviiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
Te ue?é %Siégliréis‘emplar) 1 Timothy A. Vasquez..........c.ooviiiiiiiiiiiniiiininn... 3
quan Richmond ................c oo, 0107 (Detective): 0108 (Detective): 0109 (Detective)
0207 (Jesse) §
BIett RICKADY «++ -+ 1 Vincent Ventresca..............oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnn. 1
0206 (Jimmy Wagner)
0110 (Zachary Drake) . .
Jeff Riddick 1 Pruitt Taylor Vince...............c.oooiiiiiiiiiiiiion, 1
............................................... 0110 (Martin Matthews)
0205 (Patrolman) . .
Holland Roden 1 Daniel Vincent ...t 1
0203 (Jill Creskoe) 0101. (Man Exiting Coffee Shop (uncredited))
Tommy Vita ... 1
Graham ROZETIS........o.viiiiiiiiiiiiii e 2 0104 (Michael)
0203 (Damon Eagan); 0204 (Damon Eagan)
Will Rothh. 1 Todd VOIZ . ..ot 1
ill Rothhaar......... L LR TERPRERS 0104 (Ronald Warsaw)
0210 (Dean Harrison)
Andre ROYO ......ooiiiiii i 1
0209 (Ronnie (Joe)) \W
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Billy Micheal Wallace .....................

0203 (Teen)

Glen Warner..........oooeveeeneneanennnn..

0202 (Homeless Man)

RedWest.......coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiien.

0205 (Tim Mason)

Clarence Williams III......................

0108 (Leroy Hitch)

Elizabeth Rose Young.....................

0202 (Detective); 0205 (Detective)

Nedal Yousef...........ooovvviiinnnnn.,

0203 (Trooper)
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